
Licensing Sub-Committee

Thursday 20 June 2019
10.00 am

Room G06 - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Membership Reserves

Councillor Renata Hamvas (Chair)
Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall
Councillor Ian Wingfield

Councillor Sunny Lambe

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, 
you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact
Andrew Weir on 020 7525 7222 or email: andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk   

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 11 June 2019

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk


Licensing Sub-Committee
Thursday 20 June 2019

10.00 am
Room G06 - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS

A representative of each political group will confirm the voting members of 
the committee.

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear days of the meeting.

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.

5. LICENSING ACT 2003: ELECTRIC SHUFFLE, UNIT LES - 02 LONDON 
BRIDGE STATION, (10 BERMONDSEY STREET) LONDON SE1 2ER

1 - 138

6. LICENSING ACT 2003: SIX YARD BOX PECKHAM, 34 - 36 
CHOUMERT ROAD, PECKHAM, LONDON SE15 4SE

139 - 181

7. LICENSING ACT 2003: SEEHRA SUPERMARKET, 154 CAMBERWELL 
ROAD, LONDON SE5 0EE

182 - 208



Item No. Title Page No.

ANY OTHER OPEN BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF THE 
MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to 
Information Procedure rules of the Constitution.”

ANY OTHER CLOSED BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF 
THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

Date:  11 June 2019



Item No. 
5.

Classification:
Open

Date:
20 June 2019

Meeting Name:
Licensing Sub-
Committee

Report Title Licensing Act 2003: Electric Shuffle,  Unit LES - 
02  London Bridge Station, (10 Bermondsey 
Street)  London SE1 2ER

Ward(s) of group(s) affected London Bridge and West Bermondsey

From Director of Environment 

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the licensing sub-committee considers an application made by Electric Shuffle  
Ltd  for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of 
the premises known as Electric Shuffle, Unit LES – 02 London Bridge Station, (10 
Bermondsey Street0  London SE1 2ER.

2. Notes:

a) This application forms a new application for a premises licence, submitted 
under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. The application is subject to 
representations from responsible authorities and is therefore referred to the 
sub-committee for determination.

b) Paragraphs 8 to 11 of this report provide a summary of the application under 
consideration by the sub-committee. A copy of the full application and 
conciliatory information are attached as Appendix A. 

c) Paragraphs 12 to 18 of this report deal with the representations submitted and 
any further correspondences in respect of the application. Copies of the 
representations are attached as Appendices  B,C & D. 

d) Paragraph 22 deals with licensed premises within a 100 metre radius of the 
premises. A map of the area is attached as Appendix E. 

e) A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the sub-committee 
in relation to an application made under the Licensing Act 2003, along with a 
copy of the hearing regulations, has been circulated to all parties to the 
meeting. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003

3. The Licensing Act 2003  provides a licensing regime for:

 The sale of and supply of alcohol
 The provision of regulated entertainment
 The provision of late night refreshment.

4. Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.

1
Agenda Item 5



5. The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with a 
view to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The promotion of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

6. In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to

 The Act itself
 The guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act
 Secondary regulations issued under the Act
 The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy
 The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the 

application
 Relevant representations.

7. The premises licence application process involves the provision of all relevant 
information required under the Act to the licensing authority with copies provided by 
the applicant to the relevant responsible bodies under the Act. The application must 
also be advertised at the premises and in the local press. The responsible authorities 
and other persons within the local community may make representations on any part 
of the application where relevant to the four licensing objectives.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

The premises licence application

8. On 1 April 2019, Electric Shuffle Ltd applied to this council for the grant of a premises 
licence in respect of Electric Shuffle, Unit LES – 02 London Bridge Station, (10 
Bermondsey Street) London SE1 2ER. The premises is described as a social 
entertainment venue providing competitive socialising in the form of shuffleboard 
together with ancillary bar and food offerings. The application is summarised as 
follows:  

 Indoor sports:

o Sunday to Wednesday from 09:00 to 00:00
o Thursday to Saturday from 09:00 to 01:00

 Recorded music (indoors):

o Sunday to Wednesday from 09:00 to 00:00
o Thursday to Saturday from 09:00 to 01:00

 Late night refreshment (indoors):
  

o Sunday to Wednesday from 23:00 to 00:00
o Thursday to Saturday from  23:00 to 01:00

2



 Supply of alcohol (on the premises): 
 

o Sunday to Wednesday from 11:00 to 00:00
o Thursday to Saturday from 11:00 to 01:00

 Operating hours:

o Sunday to Wednesday from 09:00 to 00:30
o Thursday to Saturday from 09:00 to 01:30

 Non standard timings:

o From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on  New Year’s Day.

o An additional hour on the Friday, Saturday and Sunday preceding a 
Bank Holiday.

 
9. The applicant has provided a presentation which is attached as Appendix B.

10. The premises licence application form provides the applicant’s operating schedule. 
Parts C, F, J, K, L, and M of the operating schedule set out the proposed licensable 
activities, operating hours and operating control measures in full, with reference to 
the four licensing objectives as stated in the Licensing Act 2003.  Should a premises 
licence be issued in respect of the application the information provided in the 
operating schedule will form the basis of conditions that will be attached to any 
licence granted subsequent to the application. A copy of the application is attached to 
this report in Appendix A.

Designated premises supervisor

11. The proposed designated premises supervisor is Dustin James Acton who has a 
personal licence issued by Sutton Council. 

Representations from responsible authorities

12. There are representations from the environmental protection team (EPT) and 
licensing (as a responsible authority).  

13. The EPT representation object on the grounds of prevention of public nuisance and 
have suggested a number of conditions that deals with noise nuisance and external 
waste collection to be added to the conditions submitted with the application. 
Furthermore the conditions suggested by the applicant refer to a blue delineated 
external smoking area on the plan but this is not shown on the plan submitted with 
the application, or with the smoking policy. They request a plan to be submitted to 
show this area in accordance with the condition. They also mention that the proposed 
hours sought exceed what is in the Southwark statement of licensing policy. The 
conciliation process has led to further conditions being agreed and therefore the EPT 
have withdrawn their representation.

 
14. The licensing representation is based on the Southwark statement of licensing policy 

2016 – 2020 and relates to the licensing objectives for the prevention of crime and 
disorder and the prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from 
harm. This premise is situated within the Bankside, Borough, London Bridge strategic 

3



cultural and London Bridge district town centre area and under the Southwark 
Statement of Licensing policy 2019 to 2021 the appropriate closing times for public 
houses, wine bars or other drinking establishments on Sunday to Thursday is 23:00 
and for Friday and Saturday 00:00. The applicant has not addressed the presumption 
to refuse this application within the operating schedule and they would recommend 
refusal of this application unless the applicant can demonstrate that the premises will 
not be contributing to crime and disorder and public nuisance within the policy area. 
They recommend further conditions to the applicant to be added to the licence 
application and the hours sought be brought in line with those recommended by the  
Southwark statement of licensing Policy.  These conditions and further reduction in 
hours have now been agreed and form part of Appendix B. The licensing 
representation is now withdrawn.

15. The representations are attached as Appendix B.

Representations from other persons

16. There are forty (40) representations from other persons. The residents are concerned 
that the premises is just across Bermondsey Street some 50 yards away from the 
apartments and there is already late night noise from restaurants in the area. The 
club aims to attract large groups and will bring about an increase in footfall of several 
hundred people. There is no parking possible on one way Bermondsey Street and 
cars, mini cabs and coaches arriving and leaving will have to use  the extremely tight 
area at the junction of Bermondsey Street/Magdalen street and Holyrood Street. The 
funnelling effect of noise and pollution created by idling engines will be extreme. In 
summary this is not a suitable location for a late-night establishment.  

17. The representations are attached as Appendix C.

Conciliation

18. The representations were forwarded to the applicant’s representative. Information 
(attached as Appendix D) was submitted and circulated to residents and a meeting 
scheduled for 28 May 2019 with the residents has now taken place at the premises. It   
was attended by approximately 15 other persons, some of whom had made 
representations and some of whom were interested in the proposed use of the 
premises. The applicant’s representative states that they have taken on board their 
observations and will be writing to them with their proposals in due course. The 
conciliation between licensing and EPT and the applicants has led to agreed 
conditions and reduction in hours sought. This forms part of Appendix D. The 
licensing sub-committee will be updated on 20 June 2019 of any developments. 

Deregulation of entertainment

19. On 6 April 2015 entertainment became deregulated and as a result: 

 Live unamplified music is deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 on any 
premises.

 Live amplified music and recorded music are deregulated between 08:00 and 
23:00 at on licensed premises for an audience of up to 500 people.

 Plays and the performance of dance are deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 
for an audience of up to 500 people.

4



 Indoor sporting events are deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 for an 
audience of up to 1000 people.

20. Live music and recorded music can become licensable in on-licensed premises if the 
licensing authority removes the effect of deregulation following a licence review 
(‘licence review mechanism’).

21. The showing of films has not been de-regulated

Map of the local area

22. A map showing the location of the premises is attached to this report as Appendix E.  
London Bridge Station has experienced a high level of recent development and 
regeneration.  There is a high concentration of licensed premises in the immediate 
vicinity both as part of the station complex and the wider locality.  More premises are 
expected to open shortly.  Examples of those in the vicinity are:

  All Bar One, 28-42 London Bridge Street, London SE1 (Monday to Sunday 
until00:30)

 Itsu, Unit 4 Shard Arcade, Joiner Street, London SE1 (Monday to Sunday until 
23:00)

 The View from the Shard, 32 London Bridge Street, London SE1(24 hours)

 Oblix, 32 London Bridge Street, London SE1 (24 hours)

 Shipwright Arms, 88 Tooley Street, SE1 (Monday to Thursday until 00:00, 
Friday and Saturday until 01:00 and Sunday until 23:00)

 London Bridge Hotel, 8 – 18 London Bridge Street, London SE1 (Monday to 
Sunday until 02:00)

 Vivat Bacchus, 4 Hays Lane, London SE1 2HB (Monday to Friday until 00:30, 
Saturday until 00:30 and Sunday until 23:30)

 Control Risks Group Ltd. – 4th Floor, Cottons Centre, London SE1 2QG 
(Monday  to Saturday until 23:00 and Sunday until 23:30)

 Price Waterhouse Coopers. 1 Hays Lane, London SE1 2RD (Monday to  
Sunday until 23:00)

 London Bridge City – 1 Battle Bridge Lane, SE1 2HP (Monday to Sunday until 
22:00)

 Bobs Lobster, Unit SU 59 London Bridge Station, London SE1 (Sunday to 
Thursday until 00:00 and Friday and Saturday until 01:00)

 The Savanna, Unit SU 58 London Bridge Station, London SE1 (Monday to 
Sunday until 22:30)  

 Honest Burgers, Unit SU 50, St Thomas Street, London SE1 (Sunday to 
Thursday until 00:00 and Friday and Saturday until 01:00)

5



 Science Gallery London, Guys Hospital Boland House, St Thomas Street, SE1 
(Monday to Sunday until 00:00)

 Kings College London, Students Union, Basement Boland House St Thomas 
Street, London SE1 (Monday to Tuesday until 01:30, Wednesday to Saturday 
until 02:30 and Sunday until 23:30)

 McDonalds, Unit SU74, Tooley Street West, Tooley Street, London SE1 
(Sunday to Thursday until 00:00 and Friday and Saturday until 01:00) 

Borough and Bankside cumulative impact zone

23. Council assembly approved the introduction of a special policy for Borough and 
Bankside on the cumulative impact of a concentration of licensed premises 
(saturation/cumulative impact policy) on 5 November 2008, and extended the area in 
April 2011. This application falls within the policy area.

24. The decision to introduce saturation policy was taken with regard to the committee’s 
concern over rising trends of late night alcohol related violence against the person 
and late night disorder and rowdiness associated with late night licensed premises in 
the area.

25. The effect of this special policy is to create a presumption that applications for new 
premises licenses or variations that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact 
will normally be refused, following relevant representations, unless the applicant can 
demonstrate in their operating schedule that there will be no negative cumulative 
impact on one or more of the licensing objectives.

26. The applicant has been advised to address the committee's concerns around 
cumulative impact at the meeting.

Southwark statement of licensing policy

27. Council assembly approved Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2019 - 2021 
on 27 March 2019. The policy came into effect on 1 January 2016. Sections of the 
statement that are considered to be of particular relevance to the sub-committee’s 
consideration are:

 Section 3 – Purpose and scope of the policy. This reinforces the four licensing 
objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this Authority relies in 
determining licence applications

 Section 5 – Determining applications for premises licences and club premises 
certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers issues such as 
location; high standards of management; and the principles behind condition 
setting.

 Section 6 – Local cumulative impact policies. This sets out this authority’s 
approach to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of the current 
special policy areas and the classifications of premises to which they apply. To 
be read in conjunction with Appendix B to the policy

6



 Section 7 – Hours of operation. This provides a guide to the hours of licensed 
operation that this Authority might consider appropriate by type of premises 
and (planning) area classification.

 Section 8 – The prevention of crime and disorder. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the first licensing objective.

 Section 9 – Public safety. This provides general guidance on the promotion of 
the second licensing objective.

 Section 10 – The prevention of nuisance. This provides general guidance on 
the promotion of the third licensing objective.

 Section 11 – The protection of children from harm. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective.

28. The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to 
applicants what considerations will be taken into account when determining 
applications and should act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the 
applications. However, the sub-committee must always consider each application on 
its own merits and allow exceptions to the normal policy where these are justified by 
the circumstances of the application.

29. Within the Southwark statement of licensing policy 2016 - 2020 the following closing 
times are recommended as appropriate within this area for this categories of 
premises as follows:

 Restaurants and cafes: 

o Sunday to Thursday: 00:00 
o Friday and Saturday is 01:00.     

 There are no restriction times for hotel bars and guest houses.

Resource implications

30. A fee of £315.00 has been paid by the applicant company in respect of this 
application being the statutory fee payable for premises within non-domestic rateable 
value band C. 

Consultation

31. Consultation has been carried out on this application in accordance with the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003. A public notice was published in a local 
newspaper and similar notices were exhibited outside of the premises for a period of 
28 consecutive days.

Community impact statement

32. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits 
with all relevant matters taken into account.

7



SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy

33. The sub-committee is asked to determine the application for a premises licence 
under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

34. The principles which sub-committee members must apply are set out below.

Principles for making the determination

35. The general principle is that applications for premises licence applications must be 
granted unless relevant representations are received.  This is subject to the proviso 
that the applicant has complied with regulations in advertising and submitting the 
application.

36. Relevant representations are those which:

 Are about the likely effect of the granting of the application on the promotion of 
the licensing objectives

 Are made by an interested party or responsible authority
 Have not been withdrawn
 Are not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious.

37. If relevant representations are received then the sub-committee must have regard to 
them, in determining whether it is necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives to:

 To grant the licence subject to:

o The conditions mentioned in section 18 (2)(a) modified to such extent as 
the licensing authority considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives

o Any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the 
licence.

 To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to 
which the application relates.

 To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor.

 To reject the application.

Conditions

38. The sub-committee’s discretion is thus limited.  It can only modify the conditions put 
forward by the applicant, or refuse the application, if it is necessary to do so. 
Conditions must be necessary and proportionate for the promotion of one of the four 
licensing objectives, and not for any other reason.  Conditions must also be within 
the control of the licensee, and should be worded in a way which is clear, certain, 
consistent and enforceable.

8



39. The four licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 Public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

40. Members should note that each objective is of equal importance.  There are no other 
licensing objectives, and the four objectives are paramount considerations at all 
times.

41. Conditions will not be necessary if they duplicate a statutory position.  Conditions 
relating to night café and take away aspect of the license must relate to the night 
time operation of the premises and must not be used to impose conditions which 
could not be imposed on day time operators.

42. Members are also referred to the Home Office revised guidance issued under 
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 on conditions, specifically section 10.

Reasons

43. If the sub-committee determines that it is necessary to modify the conditions, or to 
refuse the application for a premises licence application, it must give reasons for its 
decision.

Hearing procedures

44. Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing committee may determine 
its own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that:

 The Hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority. Cross 
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is 
required for it to consider the representations.

 Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other 
person appearing at the hearing.

 The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 
which to exercise their rights to:

o Address the authority
o If given permission by the committee, question any other party.
o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require 

clarification, give further information in support of their application.

 The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not 
relevant to the particular application before the committee and the licensing 
objectives.

 The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the public 
from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in doing 
so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, 
taking place in private.

9



 In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may 
take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in 
support of their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either 
before the hearing or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.

45. This matter relates to the determination of an application for a premises licence 
under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. Regulation 26(1) (a) requires the sub-
committee to make its determination at the conclusion of the hearing.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

46. Sub-committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the council has 
multiple roles. Council officers from various departments have been asked to 
consider the application from the perspective of the council as authority responsible 
respectively for environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as 
the planning authority.

47. Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion 
solely to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-
judicial capacity, and must act impartially.  It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing 
of the application. In this case, members should disregard the council’s broader 
policy objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts. Members must 
direct themselves to making a determination solely based upon the licensing law, 
guidance and the council’s statement of licensing policy.

48. As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the 
application on its merits. The sub-committee must take into account only relevant 
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors. The decision must be based on evidence, that 
is to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of 
relevant facts, or the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future 
event, the occurrence of which would be relevant. The licensing sub-committee must 
give fair consideration to the contentions of all persons entitled to make 
representations to them.

49. The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises if 
they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open. The 
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same to 
be relevant. However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises 
being open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded. Guidance is 
that the licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities 
taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public, living, working or 
engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.

50. Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to 
declare personal and prejudicial interests. The code applies to members when 
considering licensing applications. In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members are 
required to avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

51. The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been 
raised through representations from other persons and responsible authorities. Other 
persons must live in the vicinity of the premises. This will be decided on a case to 
case basis.

52. Under the Human Rights Act 1998 the sub-committee needs to consider the balance 
between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the 

10



application when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under section 
17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to prevent 
crime and disorder in the borough.

53. Other persons, responsible authorities and the applicant have the right to appeal the 
decision of the sub-committee to the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days 
beginning with the day on which the applicant was notified by the licensing authority 
of the decision to be appealed against.

Guidance

54. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office revised guidance in 
carrying out the functions of licensing authority.  However, guidance does not cover 
every possible situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully 
understood, members may depart from it if they have reason to do so.  Full reasons 
must be given if this is the case.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

55. The head of regulatory services has confirmed that the costs of this process over 
and above the application fee are borne by the service. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

 Background Papers  Held At  Contact
 Licensing Act 2003
 Home Office Guidance to the Act
 Secondary Regulations
 Southwark statement of licensing    
 policy Case file

 Southwark Licensing, C/O  
 Community Safety &  
 Enforcement, 160 Tooley  
 Street, London, SE1 2QH

 Mrs Kirty Read
Phone Tel: 020 7525 5748

APPENDICES

 Name Title
 Appendix A  Application for a  premises licence 
 Appendix B  Conciliation information
 Appendix C  Representations submitted by responsible authorities  
 Appendix D  Representations submitted by other persons
 Appendix E  Map of local area

11



AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Mick Lucas, Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure
Report Author Dorcas Mills, Principal Licensing Officer
Version FINAL
Dated 7 June 2019
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER
Officer Title Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law & Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

No No

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team  7 June 2019

12



APPENDIX A
13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



From: Earis, Richard  
Sent: Thursday, April 25, 2019 11:42 AM 

To: Regen, Licensing 

Cc: 'lorenza.picciano@tltsolicitors.com'; 'Matthew Phipps' 
Subject: Objection to new premises application: Electric Shuffle Limited London Bridge Station 

RE: New Premises Application - Electric Shuffle Limited London Bridge Station 

I have considered the above application and I would like to object under the prevention of public 
nuisance licensing objective. 

The following conditions should be included: 

 External waste handling, collections, deliveries and the cleaning of external areas shall only
occur between the hours of 08.00 and 20.00 (excepting waste handling collections and
deliveries which take place fully internally through London Bridge Station delivery bays)

 Premises management shall regularly monitor outside the premises to ensure that the
volume and bass levels of any licensed entertainment is kept at a level that does not cause
disturbance at the closest or most exposed noise-sensitive facade to ensure the prevention
of public nuisance

 Premises management shall regularly monitor outside the premises and take all necessary
steps to ensure that noise from patrons does not cause disturbance or public nuisance

Further, the conditions suggested by the applicant refer to a blue delineated external smoking area 
on the plan but this is not shown on the plan submitted with the application, or with the smoking 
policy. A plan should be submitted to show this area in accordance with the condition. 

Finally, I note that the proposed opening hours in the application exceed the Southwark Licensing 
Policy hours for ‘other drinking establishments’ for this location. 

Following the applicant’s response to the above I will further consider whether the objections can be 
conciliated. 

Kind Regards, 

Richard 

Richard Earis 
Principal Environmental Protection Officer 
Environmental Protection Team 

020 7525 2469 

Postal address: Southwark Council | Environmental Protection Team | Regulatory Services | 3rd 
Floor Hub  1 | PO Box 64529 | London | SE1P 5LX. 

Office address (By appointment only): Southwark Council | Environmental Protection Team | 
Regulatory Services | 3rd Floor  Hub 1 | 160 Tooley Street | London | SE1 2QH 

APPENDIX B43



MEMO:  Licensing Unit 

To Licensing Unit Date 29 April 2019 

Copies 

From Jayne Tear Telephone 020 7525 0396 

Email jayne.tear@southwark.gov.uk 

Subject Re:  Electric Shuffle Southwark, London Bridge Station, 10 Bermondsey Street, London, 

SE1 2ER  – Application to for  a premises licence  

I write with regards to the above application for a premises licence submitted by Electric Shuffle 
Limited under the Licensing Act 2003, which seeks the following licensable activities: 

• Indoor sporting events on Sunday to Wednesday from 09:00 to 00:00 and on Thursday to
Saturday from 09:00 to 01:00 the following day

• Recorded music (indoors) Sunday to Wednesday from 09:00 to 00:00 and on Thursday to
Saturday from 09:00 to 01:00 the following day

• Late night refreshment (indoors) on Sunday to Wednesday from 23:00 to 00:00 and on Thursday
to Saturday from 23:00 to 01:00 the following day

• Supply of alcohol (on the premises) on Sunday to Wednesday from 11:00 to 00:00 and on
Thursday to Saturday from 11:00 to 01:00 the following day

• Opening times shall be on Sunday to Wednesday from 09:00 to 00:30 the following day and on
Thursday to Saturday from 09:00 to 01:30 the following day

Non Standard Timings requested for all of the above: 

• From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Years
Day.

• An additional hour on the Friday, Saturday and Sunday preceding a Bank Holiday

The premises is described as a ‘Social entertainment venue providing competitive socialising in the 
form of shuffleboard together with ancillary bar and food offerings’ 

This premise is situated within the Bankside, Borough, London Bridge Strategic Cultural & London 
Bridge District Town Centre Area and under the Southwark Statement of Licensing policy 2016 - 
2020 the appropriate closing times for public houses, wine bars or other drinking establishments on 
Sunday to Thursday is 23:00 hours and for Friday and Saturday 00:00 hours 

The premises is also situated within the Borough and Bankside CIP Area. Under the Southwark 
Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 - 2020 the Local CIP applies to night clubs, public houses & bars, 
restaurants & cafes, off-licences, supermarkets, convenience stores and similar premises. 

My representation is based on the Southwark Statement of Licensing policy 2016 – 2020 and relates 
to the licensing objectives for the prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public 
nuisance. 

44



 

 

Section six of the policy (from page 32) deals with Southwark’s local cumulative impact policies. This 
premises sits in the Borough and Bankside policy area as defined in paragraph 129 of the policy and, 
as an off licence type premises falls into the class of premises in 130 of the policy.  
 
Therefore under 119 of the policy there is a rebuttable presumption that applications for new 
premises licenses that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused or 
subject to certain limitations. In such circumstances, it is for the applicant to demonstrate that the 
application will not, if granted, further contribute to the negative local cumulative impact on any one 
or more of the licensing objectives. 
 
The applicant has not addressed the presumption to refuse this application within the operating 
schedule. I would recommend refusal of this application unless the applicant can demonstrate that 
the premises will not be contributing to crime and disorder and public nuisance within the policy area.  
 
To promote the prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance licensing 
objectives I ask the applicant to consider  bringing the closing hours in line with that which is 
appropriate within the licensing policy for a bar/drinking establishment in this area and to amend the 
licensable activities accordingly, as follows: 

 

• Opening times to cease on Sunday to Thursday at 23:00 hours, Friday and Saturday at 00:00 
hours 

• Indoor sporting events and Recorded music (indoors) to cease on Sunday to Thursday at 23:00 
hours, Friday and Saturday at 00:00 hours 

• Late night refreshment (indoors) on Friday and Saturday to cease at 00:00 (to remove LNR for the 
other days) 

• Supply of alcohol (on the premises) to cease on Sunday to Thursday at 22:30 hours, Friday and 
Saturday at 23:30 hours 

 
A draft dispersal policy has been provided with the application and I would ask the applicant to 
confirm the policy and also agree to the following condition to be added to the operating schedule to 
further promote the licensing objectives: 
 

• The written dispersal policy shall be kept at the premises and made avaialable for inspection by 
authorised officers of the council or the police and all relevent staff shall be trained in the 
implementation of the policy. 

 
I therefore submit this representation and welcome any discussion with the applicant. 
 
Southwark’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 – 2020 can be found on the following link: 
http://lbs-mapweb-01:9080/connect/Includes/APPIMA/SSOLP1620.pdf 
 
 
 
 
 
Jayne Tear 
Principal Licensing officer 
In the capacity of Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority 

45



APPENDIX C
46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



APPENDIX  D 123



Premises Name: Electric Shuffle 

Premises Address: Electric Shuffle Southwark, Unit LES-02, London Bridge Station, Bermondsey 

Street, London SE1 

Smoking Management Policy 

This policy is designed to promote the Licensing Objective of: 

 The Prevention of Public Nuisance.

The Premises Licence Holder will ensure that: 

 Suitable ash trays and other receptacles are positioned in proximity to the designated smoking area.

 No furniture will be placed in the smoking area so as to avoid encouraging customers to be within the

smoking area longer than necessary.

 Staff regularly monitor the smoking area.

 When engaged (see premises licence condition licence condition) SIA door supervisors will monitor

and control the number of smokers in the smoking area

 During sensitive hours the capacity of the smoking area shall be 10 persons

 Staff regularly clean and clear the designated smoking area during the course of the trading period.

Staff carrying out this role will also actively monitor customer behaviour and use of the smoking area.

 Each morning when the premises is cleaned, prior to opening, the outside area (including the

designated smoking area), will be thoroughly cleaned and all smoking detritus removed.

 Ashtrays (etc) will be provided in sufficient volume so as to deter the throwing of cigarette ends into

the street and/or onto the pavement.

 The designated smoking area is positioned to ensure that customers using the space do not cause

nuisance or noise disturbance to residents.

 There is inter-visibility between the smoking area and the internal entrance where Flight Club’s

greeters and staff are situated throughout service.

 At peak times when SIA accredited door staff will be present, as well as controlling customer access

and egress they will take an active role monitoring and managing the smoking area to ensure there is

no nuisance.

 Signage will be displayed internally asking smokers to utilise the facilities available and to be

respectful of neighbours.

124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



From: Tear, Jayne  
Sent: Friday, June 07, 2019 6:43 PM 

To: 'Gary Grant' 

Cc: 'Luke Elford'; ' ; Mills, Dorcas 
Subject: FW: ELECTRIC SHUFFLE 

Importance: High 

Dear Gary, 

Thank you for your response following our conversation this afternoon. 

Just to clarify  the changes to the email attached,  I have amended the sale of alcohol times as 
agreed and added the dispersal policy condition as number 7 at the end of this email. 

On the basis that the applicant has amended the hours of operation and licensable activities as 
shown in red below and added extra conditions (1 to7 as below), to the operating schedule , I can 
confirm that the concerns with my representation have been addressed and my representation is 
now withdrawn, 

Hours 

Activity Proposed with application Proposed to you 

Sale of Alcohol 11:00 – 00:00 Sunday to 
Wednesday 

11:00 – 01:00 Thursday to 
Saturday 

11:00 – 22:45 Sunday to 
Thursday 

11:00 – 23:45 Friday and 
Saturday 

Late Night Refreshment 23:00 – 00:00 Sunday to 
Wednesday 

11:00 – 01:00 Thursday to 
Saturday 

None – Sunday to Thursday 

23:00 – 00:00 Friday and 
Saturday 

Indoor Sporting Events 09:00 – 00:00 Sunday to 
Wednesday 

09:00 – 01:00 Thursday to 
Saturday 

09:00 – 23:00 Sunday to 
Thursday 

09:00 – 00:00 Friday and 
Saturday 

Recorded Music 09:00 – 00:00 Sunday to 
Wednesday 

09:00 – 01:00 Thursday to 
Saturday 

None – Sunday to Thursday 

(note: I have put this as none 
because technically speaking 
it wouldn't be a licensable 
activity before 23:00 hours, 
but I am relaxed if you would 
prefer it to be from 09:00 right 
through) 

23:00 – 00:00 Friday and 
Saturday 

Opening Hours 09:00 – 00:30 Sunday to 
Wednesday 

09:00 – 01:30 Thursday to 
Saturday 

09:00 – 23:00 Sunday to 
Thursday 

09:00 – 00:00 Friday and 
Saturday 

Licensing Agreed condituons/ hrs and withdrawal134



Conditions 
 
In addition to the reduction of hours for licensable activities (set out above), we are minded to offer the 
following additional conditions (to be inserted as necessary into the operating schedule): 
 

1. The shall be no dancefloor at the premises (to address the allegation that the premises 
could trade as some kind of nightclub) 
 

2. The premises licence holder will employ a minimum of 1 x SIA licensed door supervisor from 
19:00 until 30 minutes after the premises closes to the public from Sunday to Wednesday and 
2 x SIA licensed door supervisors from 19:00 until 30 minutes after the premises closes to the 
public on Friday and Saturday (replacing condition 8 – increased SIA offering) 
 

3. The premises licence holder will employ a minimum of 2 x quiet marshals from 21:00 until 30 
minutes after the premises closes to the public on Friday and Saturday 
 

4. The premises licence holder shall risk assess the need for quiet marshals or additional quiet 
marshals (when already employed) 
 

5. The quiet marshals shall be positioned in accordance with the plan appended to the premises' 
dispersal policy (the intention is to place one quiet marshal towards the taxi rank on 
Bermondsey Street and one quiet marshal across the road in the vicinity of Magdelen 
and Holyrood Streets) 
 

6. There shall be no admittance or re-admittance to the premises after 22:00 from Sunday to 
Wednesday and from 23:00 on Friday and Saturday except for patrons permitted to 
temporarily leave the premises to smoke (replacing condition 5 to ensure a phased 
dispersal from the premises – we can provide statistics to show this is what happens 
at other units if that helps?) 
 

7. The written dispersal policy shall be kept at the premises and made available for inspection 
by authorised officers of the council or the police and all relevant staff shall be trained in the 
implementation of the policy 

 

With kindest regards 
 
Jayne 
 

Jayne Tear - Principal Licensing Officer – As Responsible Authority for Licensing 

Southwark Council | Licensing Unit  

160 Tooley Street | London | SE1 2QH 

Direct line 020 7525 0396 | Fax 020 7525 5735 | Call Centre 020 7525 2000 

 
Womens Safety Charter 
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/community-safety/let-s-talk-about-women-s-safety  
 
 
 

135

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/community-safety/let-s-talk-about-women-s-safety


From: Gary Grant [mailto:Gary.Grant@ftbchambers.co.uk]  

Sent: Friday, June 07, 2019 5:48 PM 
To: Tear, Jayne 

Cc: 'Matthew Phipps'; Luke Elford; Gary Grant 
Subject: ELECTRIC SHUFFLE 

Importance: High 

 
Dear Jayne 
  
Further to our constructive discussions over the past few days I can confirm that my client accepts 
your proposals. In addition to the conditions/hours proposed in my solicitors email to you dated 3 
June (attached for convenience), my client agrees to further amend their application to ensure: 
  

1)                  The sale of alcohol shall terminate at 22:45hrs (Sunday-Thursday) and 23:45hrs (Friday-
Saturday) 
  

2)                  We add the following condition set out in your representation: “The written dispersal 
policy shall be kept at the premises and made available for inspection by authorised 
officers of the council or the police and all relevant staff shall be trained in the 
implementation of the policy”. 

  
Subject to these amendments, I understand you are now satisfied with the application and feel able 
to withdraw your objection. Would you mind informing the relevant parties of that and cc myself 
and my instructing solicitors into your email please? 
  
Many thanks and I hope you have an enjoyable weekend. 
  
Gary 
  

GARY GRANT 
Barrister 
  
Francis Taylor Building 
Inner Temple 
London EC4Y 7BY 
DX: 402 LDE 
  
Email:  
Chambers:  

 
  
Licensing profile:  
 

136

mailto:Gary.Grant@ftbchambers.co.uk


From: Earis, Richard  

Sent: Monday, June 10, 2019 4:12 PM 

To: Mills, Dorcas; Regen, Licensing 
Cc: Matthew Phipps; 'Luke Elford';  

Subject: RE: ELECTRIC SHUFFLE 

Hi Dorcas, 

Further to the amended hours and conditions detailed in the email of 7
th

 June below, and to

the applicant’s agreement to additional conditions as per the attached (reproduced in this 

email for ease), I confirm that my concerns have been addressed and I withdraw my 

objections. 

Additional agreed conditions: 

 External waste handling, collections, deliveries and the cleaning of external areas

shall only occur between the hours of 08.00 and 20.00 (excepting waste handling

collections and deliveries which take place fully internally through London Bridge

Station delivery bays)

 Premises management shall regularly monitor outside the premises to ensure that the

volume and bass levels of any licensed entertainment is kept at a level that does not

cause disturbance at the closest or most exposed noise-sensitive facade to ensure the

prevention of public nuisance

 Premises management shall regularly monitor outside the premises and take all

necessary steps to ensure that noise from patrons does not cause disturbance or public

nuisance

Kind Regards, 

Richard 

Richard Earis 

Principal Environmental Protection Officer 

Environmental Protection Team 

020 7525 2469 

Postal address: Southwark Council | Environmental Protection Team | Regulatory Services | 

3rd Floor Hub  1 | PO Box 64529 | London | SE1P 5LX. 

Office address (By appointment only): Southwark Council | Environmental Protection Team | 

Regulatory Services | 3rd Floor  Hub 1 | 160 Tooley Street | London | SE1 2QH 

EPT agreed conditions and withdrawal
137



Southwark Maps includes © Crown copyright and database rights 2018 OS (0)100019252. Aerial imagery from Verisk

APPENDIX E

138



Item No. 
6.

Classification:
Open

Date:
20 June 2019

Meeting Name:
Licensing Sub-Committee

Report Title Licensing Act 2003: Six Yard Box Peckham, 34 – 
36 Choumert Road, Peckham, London SE15 
4SE

Ward(s) of group(s) affected Rye Lane

From Director of Environment 

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the licensing sub-committee considers whether an application submitted by Six 
Yard Box Limited for a premises licence be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 in 
respect of the premises known as Six Yard Box Peckham, 34 – 36 Choumert Road, 
Peckham, London SE15 4SE.

2. Notes:

a) The application is for a premises licence and was submitted under Section 17 
of the Licensing Act 2003. The application is subject to representations and is 
therefore referred to the licensing sub-committee for determination.

b) Paragraphs 8 to 12 of this report provide a summary of the application under 
consideration by the sub-committee. A copy of the full application is attached 
as Appendix A.

c) Paragraphs 13 to 17 of this report deal with the representations submitted in 
respect of the application. Copies of the representations are attached to this 
report in Appendices B and C. A map showing the location of the premises is 
attached to this report as Appendix E.

d) A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the sub-committee 
in relation to applications made under the Licensing Act 2003, along with a 
copy of the hearing regulations, has been circulated to all parties to the 
meeting. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003

3. The Licensing Act 2003  provides a licensing regime for:

 The sale of and supply of alcohol
 The provision of regulated entertainment
 The provision of late night refreshment.

4. Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.

5. The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with a 
view to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:

139
Agenda Item 6



 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The promotion of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

6. In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to

 The Act itself
 The guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act
 Secondary regulations issued under the Act
 The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy
 The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the 

application
 Relevant representations

7. The premises licence application process involves the provision of all relevant 
information required under the Act to the licensing authority with copies provided by 
the applicant to the relevant responsible bodies under the Act. The application must 
also be advertised at the premises and in the local press. The responsible authorities 
and other persons within the local community may make representations on any part 
of the application where relevant to the four licensing objectives.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

The premises licence application

8. On 24 April 2019 Six Yard Box Limited applied to this council for the grant of a 
premises licence in respect of Six Yard Box Peckham, 34 - 36 Choumert Road, 
Peckham, London SE15 4SE.

9. The application is summarised as follows: 

 Films

o Thursday and Friday from 19:00 to 22:00

o (Seasonal variation: Films on Tuesday and Wednesdays during August 
to June)*

 Supply of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises

o Monday to Thursday from 15:00 to 22:30 
o Friday and Saturday from 12:00 to 23:00
o Sunday from 12:00 to 22:00
o Non standard timing: New Years Eve 12:00 – 00:30

 Recorded music*

o Monday to Friday from 15:00 to 23:00 
o Saturday from 12:00 to 23:00
o Sunday from 12:00 to 22:00

140



 Proposed opening hours of the premises 

o Monday to Thursday from 15:00 to 23:00 
o Friday and Saturday from 12:00 to 23:30
o Sunday from 12:00 to 22:30
o Non standard timing: New Years Eve from 12:00 to 01:00

*NB The applicant removed recorded music and the seasonal variation regarding 
films from the application. Correspondence regarding this is in Appendix A.

10. The premises are described as follows:

 “The premises is made up of two self contained shops, divided by a 
plasterboard partition wall. Each side has a single exit door for egress onto 
Choumert Road. There is no rear exit or entrance to the building from either 
side of the premise. There is one flat above the premise, for which a course of 
soundproofing in the floor has been laid. There is a restaurant operating out of 
the neighbour in 38 and a food shop in 32.”

11. The premises licence application form provides the applicant’s operating schedule. 
Parts B, F, J, K, L, and M of the operating schedule set out the proposed licensable 
activities, operating hours and operating control measures in full, with reference to 
the four licensing objectives as stated in the Licensing Act 2003. Should a premises 
licence be issued in respect of the application then the information provided in part M 
of the operating schedule will form the basis of conditions that will be attached to any 
licence granted subsequent to the application. Copies of the application and 
correspondence from the applicant requesting that recorded music and the seasonal 
variations are removed from the application are attached to this report as Appendix 
A.  

Designated Premises Supervisor

12. The proposed designated premises supervisor (DPS) of the premises is Sebastian 
O’Driscoll.

Representations from responsible authorities 

13. Representations were submitted by the Metropolitan Police Service and also by this 
council’s licensing responsible authority.

14. The representations from the Metropolitan Police Service’s and the licensing 
responsible authority both suggested different control measures that the Metropolitan 
Police Service and licensing responsible authority recommended should become 
conditions of any licence issued subsequent to the application. The applicant agreed 
to amend the application to include the suggested control measures and the 
representations were withdrawn.

15. Copies of the representations submitted by responsible authorities, and related 
correspondence, are attached as appendix B.

Representations from other persons

16. Two representations objecting to the application have submitted by ‘other persons’. 
In summary, the representations object to the application contending that the 
intended operation of the premises will possibly give rise to increased crime and 
disorder, anti social behaviour and noise nuisance in the locale.

141



17. Copies of the representations submitted by the other persons are attached as to this 
report as Appendix C. 

Conciliation

18. The applicant provided responses to the representations submitted by other persons. 
Both of the other persons replied and stated that their representations stand as 
submitted. Therefore both of the representations submitted by other persons are 
therefore outstanding and must be considered by the licensing sub-committee.  

19. Copies of the representations submitted by the other persons, and related 
correspondence, are attached as to this report as Appendix C.

Premises history

20. The proposed DPS of the premises (Sebastian O’Driscoll) has previously used the 
premises to hold ‘pop up’ events, using temporary event notices to facilitate the 
events. A list of the temporary events submitted in respect of the premises is 
attached to this report as Appendix D.

21. On 24 April 2019 Six Yard Box Limited applied to this council for the grant of a 
premises licence in respect of Six Yard Box Peckham, 34 – 36 Choumert Road, 
Peckham, London SE15 4SE.

Deregulation of entertainment

22. On 6 April 2015 entertainment became deregulated and as a result: 

 Live unamplified music is deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 on any       
premises.

 Live amplified music and recorded music are deregulated between 08:00 and 
23:00 at on licensed premises for an audience of up to 500 people.

 Plays and the performance of dance are deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 
for an audience of up to 500 people.

 Indoor sporting events are deregulated between 08:00 and 23:00 for an 
audience of up to 1000 people.

23. Live music and recorded music can become licensable in on-licensed premises if the 
licensing authority removes the effect of deregulation following a licence review 
(‘licence review mechanism’).

24. The showing of films has not been de-regulated.

Map

25. A map, showing the location of the premises is attached to this report as Appendix E. 
The following licensed premises are also shown on the map and provide licensable 
activities as stated:

Swaizie Food Store, 1A Choumert Road, London SE15 4SE licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed off the premises:

142



o Monday to Saturday from 08:00 to 22:00 
o Sunday from 10:00 to 22:30

Bar Om, 18 Choumert Road, SE15 4SE licensed for:

 Recorded music and the sale of alcohol to be consumed on the premises

o Monday to Sunday from 11:00 to 23:00

The Montpelier, 43 Choumert Road, SE15 4AR licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on or off the premises, films, live music, 
anything similar to live or recorded music

o Monday to Thursday from 17:00 to 23:00 
o Friday and Saturday from 10:00 to 01:00
o Sunday from 10:00 to 23:30

Miss Tapas, 46 Choumert Road, London SE15 4SE licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on and off the premises:

o Monday to Sunday from 19:00 to 23:00  

Zapoi, 138 Rye Lane, London SE15 4RZ licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on the premises, recorded music, live 
music, late night refreshment 

o Sunday to Thursday from 23:00 to 23:30 
o Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 00:30  

Stella's African Food, 154 Rye Lane, London SE15 4NB licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed off the premises:

o Monday to Sunday from 10:00 to 22:00.

Bargain Booze, 164 Rye Lane, London SE15 4NB licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed off the premises:

o Monday to Saturday from 08:00 to 23:00 
o Sunday from 10:00 to 22:30.

ASDA Supermarket, 174 Rye Lane, London SE15 4NB licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed off the premises:

o Monday to Saturday from 08:00 to 23:00 
o Sunday from 10:00 to 22:30.

143



John The Unicorn, 157-159 Rye Lane, London SE15 4TL licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on the premises and recorded music:

o Sunday to Thursday from 11:00 to 00:00 (midnight)
o Friday and Saturday from 11:00 to 01:00 the following day.

 The provision of late night refreshment:

o Sunday to Thursday from 23:00 to 00:30 the following day
o Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 01:30 the following day

Morley’s Fried Chicken, 163 Rye Lane, London SE15 4TL licensed for:

 The provision of late night refreshment

o Sunday to Thursday from 23:00 to 00:00  
o Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 01:00   

Roosters Hut, 177-179 Rye Lane, London SE15 4TP licensed for:

 The provision of late night refreshment:

o Sunday to Thursday from 23:00 to 02:00 the following day
o Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 03:00 the following day.

Rootz, 181 Rye Lane, London SE15 4TP licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on premises:

o Monday to Saturday from 11:00 to 23:30  
o Sunday from 10:00 to 17:30  

 The provision of late night refreshment:

o Monday to Saturday from 23:00 to 00:00  

Four Quarters, 187 Rye Lane, London SE15 4TP licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on the premises & films: 

o Sunday to Wednesday from 11:00 to 00:30 the following day
o Thursday from 11:00 to 01:00 the following day
o Friday and Saturday from 11:00  to 01:30 the following day

 The provision of late night refreshment:

o Sunday to Wednesday from 23:00 to 00:30 the following day
o Thursday from 23:00 to 01:00 the following day
o Friday & Saturday from 23:00 to 01:30 the following day

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on the premises & films: 

o Sunday to Wednesday from 11:00 to 00:30 the following day
o Thursday from 11:00 to 01:00 the following day

144



o Friday and Saturday from 11:00  to 01:30 the following day

 Recorded music:

o Thursday from 23:00 to 01:30 the following day
o Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 02:00 the following day.

Taco Queen, 191 Rye Lane, London SE15 4TP licensed for:

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed on the premises:

o Monday to Saturday from 09:00 to 23:30 
o Friday to Saturday from 09:00 to 22:00.

Southwark council saturation policy for Peckham

26. Council assembly approved the introduction of a special policy for Peckham on the 
cumulative impact of a concentration of licensed premises (saturation policy) on 12 
October 2011. This was renewed in March 2019 when full council assembly 
approved the 2019 - 2021 Statement of licensing policy.

27. The decision to introduce saturation policy was taken with regard to the committee’s 
concern over rising trends of late night alcohol related violence against the person 
and late night disorder and rowdiness associated with late night licensed premises in 
the area. 

28. The effect of this special policy is that is to create a presumption that applications for 
new premises licences or variations that are likely to add to the existing cumulative 
impact will normally be refused, following relevant representations, unless the 
applicant can demonstrate in their operating schedule that there will be no negative 
cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives.

29. The applicant has been advised to address the committees concerns around 
cumulative impact at the meeting.

Southwark council statement of licensing policy

30. Council assembly approved Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2019 - 21 on 
27 March 2019. Sections of the statement that are considered to be of particular 
relevance to the sub-committee’s consideration are:

 Section 3 - Purpose and scope of the policy. This reinforces the four licensing 
objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this authority relies in 
determining licence applications.

 Section 5 – Determining applications for premises licences and club premises 
certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers issues such as 
location; high standards of management; and the principles behind condition 
setting.

 Section 6 – Local cumulative impact policies. This sets out this authority’s 
approach to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of the current 
special policy areas and the classifications of premises to which they apply. To 
be read in conjunction with Appendix B to the policy

145



 Section 7 – Hours of operation. This provides a guide to the hours of licensed 
operation that this authority might consider appropriate by type of premises 
and (planning) area classification.

 Section 8 – The prevention of crime and disorder. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the first licensing objective.

 Section 9 – Public safety. This provides general guidance on the promotion of 
the second licensing objective.

 Section 10 – The prevention of nuisance. This provides general guidance on 
the promotion of the third licensing objective.

 Section 11 – The protection of children from harm. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective.

31. The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to 
applicants what considerations will be taken into account when determining 
applications and should act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the 
applications. However, the sub-committee must always consider each application on 
its own merits and allow exceptions to the normal policy where these are justified by 
the circumstances of the application.

32. The premises are located in Peckham major town centre area. Closing times as 
stated below are suggested in the statement of licensing policy for the following 
types of licensed premises located in residential areas:

 
 Restaurants and Cafes:

o Sunday to Thursday: 00:00
o Friday and Saturday: 01:00

 Public houses, wine bars, or other drinking establishments and bars in other 
types of premises:

o Sunday to Thursday: 23:00
o Friday and Saturday: 00:00

Resource implications

33. A fee of £190.00 has been paid by the applicant company in respect of this 
application being the statutory fee payable for premises within non-domestic rateable 
value band B. 

Consultation

34. Consultation has been carried out on this application in accordance with the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003. A public notice was published in a local 
newspaper and a similar notice exhibited outside of the premises for a period of 28 
consecutive days.

Community impact statement

35. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits 
with all relevant matters taken into account.

146



SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

36. The sub-committee is asked to determine the application for a premises licence 
under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

37. The principles which sub-committee members must apply are set out below.

Principles for making the determination

38. The general principle is that applications for premises licence applications must be 
granted unless relevant representations are received. This is subject to the proviso 
that the applicant has complied with regulations in advertising and submitting the 
application.

39. Relevant representations are those which:

 Are about the likely effect of the granting of the application on the promotion of 
the licensing objectives

 Are made by an interested party or responsible authority
 Have not been withdrawn
 Are not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing authority, frivolous or 

vexatious.

40. If relevant representations are received then the sub-committee must have regard to 
them, in determining whether it is necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives to:

 To grant the licence subject to:

o The conditions mentioned in section 18 (2)(a) modified to such extent as 
the licensing authority considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives

o Any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the 
licence

 To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to 
which the application relates

 To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor
 To reject the application.

Conditions

41. The sub-committee’s discretion is thus limited. It can only modify the conditions put 
forward by the applicant, or refuse the application, if it is necessary to do so. 
Conditions must be necessary and proportionate for the promotion of one of the four 
licensing objectives, and not for any other reason. Conditions must also be within the 
control of the licensee, and should be worded in a way which is clear, certain, 
consistent and enforceable.

42. The four licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder

147



 Public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

43. Members should note that each objective is of equal importance. There are no other 
licensing objectives, and the four objectives are paramount considerations at all 
times.

44. Conditions will not be necessary if they duplicate a statutory position. Conditions 
relating to night café and take away aspect of the license must relate to the night 
time operation of the premises and must not be used to impose conditions which 
could not be imposed on day time operators.

45. Members are also referred to the Home Office Revised Guidance issued under 
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 on conditions, specifically section 10.

Reasons

46. If the sub-committee determines that it is necessary to modify the conditions, or to 
refuse the application for a premises licence application, it must give reasons for its 
decision.

Hearing procedures

47. Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing committee may determine 
its own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that:

 The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority. Cross 
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is 
required for it to consider the representations.

 Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other 
person appearing at the hearing.

 The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 
which to exercise their rights to:

o Address the authority
o If given permission by the committee, question any other party.
o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require 

clarification, give further information in support of their application.

 The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not 
relevant to the particular application before the committee and the licensing 
objectives.

 The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the public 
from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in doing 
so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, 
taking place in private.

 In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may 
take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in 
support of their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either 
before the hearing or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.

148



48. This matter relates to the determination of an application for a premises licence 
under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. Regulation 26(1) (a) requires the sub-
committee to make its determination at the conclusion of the hearing.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

49. Sub-committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the council has 
multiple roles. Council officers from various departments have been asked to 
consider the application from the perspective of the council as authority responsible 
respectively for environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as 
the planning authority.

50. Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion 
solely to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-
judicial capacity, and must act impartially. It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing of 
the application. In this case, members should disregard the council’s broader policy 
objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts. Members must direct 
themselves to making a determination solely based upon the licensing law, guidance 
and the council’s statement of licensing policy.

51. As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the 
application on its merits. The sub-committee must take into account only relevant 
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors. The decision must be based on evidence, that 
is to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of 
relevant facts, or the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future 
event, the occurrence of which would be relevant. The licensing sub-committee must 
give fair consideration to the contentions of all persons entitled to make 
representations to them.

52. The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises if 
they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open. The 
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same to 
be relevant. However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises 
being open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded. Guidance is 
that the licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities 
taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public, living, working or 
engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.

53. Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to 
declare personal and prejudicial interests. The code applies to members when 
considering licensing applications. In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members are 
required to avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

54. The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been 
raised through representations from other persons and responsible authorities. 
Interested parties must live in the vicinity of the premises. This will be decided on a 
case to case basis.

55. Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the sub-committee needs to consider the 
balance between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the 
application when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under section 
17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to prevent 
crime and disorder in the borough.

149



56. Other persons, responsible authorities and the applicant have the right to appeal the 
decision of the sub-committee to the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days 
beginning with the day on which the applicant was notified by the licensing authority 
of the decision to be appealed against.

Guidance

57. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office guidance in carrying out 
the functions of licensing authority. However, guidance does not cover every 
possible situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully 
understood, members may depart from it if they have reason to do so. Full reasons 
must be given if this is the case.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

58. The head of regulatory services has confirmed that the costs of this process over 
and above the application fee are borne by the service. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

 Background Papers  Held At  Contact
 Licensing Act 2003
Home Office Revised Guidance to 
the Act
 Secondary Regulations
 Southwark statement of licensing 
 policy Case file

 Southwark Licensing, C/O 
 Community Safety and 
 Enforcement, 160 Tooley 
 Street, London, SE1 2QH

 Mrs Kirty Read
Phone Tel: 020 7525 5748

APPENDICES

 Name Title
 Appendix A Copies of the application  and related correspondence
 Appendix B Copies of the representations submitted by responsible 

authorities and related correspondence
 Appendix C Copies of the representations submitted by other persons and 

related correspondence
 Appendix D Details of temporary events notices in respect of the premises
 Appendix E Map 
 

150



AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Mick Lucas, Director of Environment 
Report Author Wesley McArthur, Principal Licensing Officer

Version Final
Dated 6 June 2019

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

No No

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 7 June 2019

151



APPENDIX A
152



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

If you are applying as an individual or non-individual please select one of the following:-

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the
<br>premises for licensable activities

Other Applicants

Personal Details - First Entry

Name Six Yard Box Limited

Address - First Entry

Street number or
building name

Unit 6, The Artworks

Street Description

Town

County

Post code

Elephant Road
London

SE17 1AY
Registered number 
(where applicable )

09312242

Description of
applicant ( for
example,
partnership,
company,
unincorporated
association etc )

Private Limited Company

Contact Details - First Entry

Telephone number

Email address

Operating Schedule

When do you want the premises licence to start?

18/05/2019

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do you want it to end?

General description of premises ( see guidance note 1 )

153



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

The Premies is made up of two self contained shops, divided by a plasterboard
partition wall. Each side has a single exit door for egress onto Choumert Road. There is
no rear exit or entrance to the building from either side of the premise. 

There is one flat above the premise, for which a course of soundproofing in the floor
has been laid. There is a restaurant operating out of the neighbour in 38 and a food
shop in 32.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time please use the drop down below
to select the number.

Less than 5000

Operating Schedule part 2

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and schedule 1 and 2 of the 
Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment (Please read guidance note 2)

b) films

f) recorded music

Provision of late night refreshment

Supply of alcohol

j) Supply of alcohol

B- Films

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or outdoors or both? ( Please read guidance note 3)

Indoors

154



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

Please give further details here ( Please read guidance note 4)

We will have 3 TV screens in the premises primarily to show live football. However we
intend to screen classic matches and documentaries on these screens on occasions
where there is no live football on Sky or BT.

Standard days and timings for Films ( Please read guidance note 7)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tues

Wed

Thur 19:00 22:00

Fri 19:00 22:00

Sat

Sun

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films ( Please read guidance note 5)

During the summer months we may look to increase screenings to Tuesday and
Wednesdays (we intend to show European football on these days August - June) ,
however no programme has been completed at this time.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the exhibition of films at different times to
those listed. ( Please read guidance note 6 )

F - Recorded Music

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or outdoors or both? ( Please read guidance note 3 )

Indoors

Please give further details here ( Please read guidance note 4)

We intend to played recorded music as background entertainment for customers. 3
Speakers will be connected to a single amplifier that will be controlled behind the
counter by staff. 

All speakers will be mounted on rubber vibrating speaker pads to minimise impact
noise from the bass. Speakers will be placed low to the ground and will face into the
premises to minimise airborne noise leaving the premises. 

The volume and base level will be kept to a level where it is not audible outside the
premises. We intend to make checks for audible noise outside the premises and at the
nearest or most exposed residence to ensure compliance with the licensing objective
regarding the prevention of public nuisance remains effective.

155



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

Standard days and timings for Recorded Music ( Please read guidance note 7 )

Day Start Finish

Mon 15:00 23:00

Tues 15:00 23:00

Wed 15:00 23:00

Thur 15:00 23:00

Fri 15:00 23:00

Sat 12:00 23:00

Sun 12:00 22:00

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music ( Please read guidance note 5)

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the playing of recorded music entertainment
at different times to those listed. ( Please read guidance note 6 )

J - Supply of Alcohol

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption ( Please read guidance note 8)

Both

Standard days and timings for Supply of alcohol ( Please read guidance note 7)

Day Start Finish

Mon 15:00 22:30

Tues 15:00 22:30

Wed 15:00 22:30

Thur 15:00 22:30

Fri 12:00 23:00

Sat 12:00 23:00

Sun 12:00 22:00

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol ( Please read guidance 5)

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol at different times to
those listed. Please list, ( Please read guidance note 6 )

156



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

New Years Eve: 12:00 - 00:30

Please download and then upload the consent form completed by the designated proposed premises
supervisor

Premises Supervisor

Full name of proposed designated premises supervisor

First names Sebastian

Surname O'Driscoll

DOB

Date Of Birth

Address of proposed designated premises supervisor

Street number or
Building name

Street Description

Town

County

Post code

Personal licence number of proposed designated premises supervisor, if any,

Personal licence
number ( if known )

Issuing authority ( if
known )

K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the
use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children ( Please read guidance note 9)

We intend to allow children on the premises when supervised by an adult as our
offering of buying a football shirt or watching a Live game is appropriate for persons
under 18. 

We do not have any adult entertainment or services that give rise to concern in respect
of children

157



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

L - Hours premises are open to public

Hours premises are open to the public ( standard timings Please read guidance note 7 )

Day Start Finish

Mon 15:00 23:00

Tues 15:00 23:00

Wed 15:00 23:00

Thur 15:00 23:00

Fri 12:00 23:30

Sat 12:00 23:30

Sun 12:00 22:30

State any seasonal variations ( Please read guidance note 5 )

New Years Eve: 12:00 - 01:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the public at different times from
those listed. Please list, ( Please read guidance note 6 )

M - Steps to promote four licencing objectives

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) ( Please read guidance note 10 )

1. That no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence (a) at a time
when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence,
or(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

2. That every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised
by a person who holds a personal licence.

3. Where one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security
activity, each such individual must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority by a
licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act 2001 or entitled to carry out that
activity by virtue of section 4 of the Private Security Industry Act 2001.4. 

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises –
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to –i. drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to
drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or ii. drink as
much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or

158



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone,
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness
in any favourable manner;
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability)

.5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request
to customers where it is reasonably available.

6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy (Challenge 25) is adopted in respect of the premises in
relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age
verification policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce
on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth and either -(a)a holographic mark, or(b)an ultraviolet feature.

7. The responsible person must ensure that -
(a)where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in
the following measures -(i)beer or cider: ½ pint;(ii)gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or
35 ml; and(iii)still wine in a glass: 125 ml;
(b)these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and(c)where a customer does not in relation to
a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware
that these measures are available.”

8. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on
or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

9. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1— (a)“duty” is to be construed
in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; (b)“permitted price” is the price
found by applying the formula—Where - (i) P is the permitted price, (ii) D is the amount of
duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the
sale or supply of the alcohol, and (iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in
relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or
supply of the alcohol; (c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of
which there is in force a premises licence— (i) the holder of the premises licence, (ii) the
designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or (iii) the personal
licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence; (d)
“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in
a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2
would (apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by
that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph
rounded up to the nearest penny. Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price
given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from
the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the
rate of duty or value added tax. The permitted price which would apply on the first day
applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period
of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

10: Registered door supervisors shall be on duty during high demand events such as
Champions League Final, FA Cup Final, England World Cup Games and any other
days that are likely to see a surge of people attending the shop. 

11. CCTV shall be installed and maintained with recordings kept for duration of the Pop
Up and readily available for inspection by the Police and duly authorised officers of the
Council.

12. Hard-copy recordings of CCTV footage in a playable format must be provided to
Police and/or licensing authority officers within 48 hours of their request. The Premises

159



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

must ensure the CCTV system is operating and recording 24 hours every day (save for
the purpose of maintenance).

13. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 scheme whereby any individual
reasonably suspected of being under 25 years of age shall be requested to produce
photographic identification in the form of a driver's licence, passport or a PASS card
stating the holder's date of birth.

14. The number of persons accommodated at any one time in the licensed area shall
not exceed 60.

15. Patrons to enter and exit via 34 Choumert Road entrance. 36 Choumert Road
entrance will only be used as an emergency 

16. A notice(s) shall be displayed in a prominent position at or near the exit requesting
patrons to leave the premises quietly and avoid disturbance in the residential area.

17. That the drinking up time for clients will be 30 minutes after the closing time for the
sale of alcohol. 

18. That all appropriate staff shall be trained in the age identification scheme required
at the premises and records of training shall be kept and made available for inspection
by authorised officers of the Council

b) the prevention of crime and disorder

1. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 scheme whereby any individual
reasonably suspected of being under 25 years of age shall be requested to produce
photographic identification in the form of a driver's licence, passport or a PASS card
stating the holder's date of birth.

2. A notice shall be displayed in a prominent position at or near the exit requesting
patrons to leave the premises quietly and avoid disturbance in the residential area.

3: Registered door supervisors shall be on duty during high demand events such as
Champions League Final, FA Cup Final, England World Cup Games and any other
days that are likely to see a surge of people attending the shop. 

4. CCTV shall be installed and maintained with recordings kept for duration of the Pop
Up and readily available for inspection by the Police and duly authorised officers of the
Council.

5. The premises will sign up to any council led local schemes aimed to promote the
prevention of crime and disorder such as the Women's Safety Charter.

c) public safety

1. Persons whom appear to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs will not be
served.

2. The premises will sign up to any council led local schemes aimed to promote the
prevention of crime and disorder such as the Women's Safety Charter.  

3. An incident log will be kept by management and be available to police or licencing
authority upon request.

d) the prevention of public nuisance

1. That persons whom appear to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs will not be
served. 

160



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

2. Entertainment noise shall be kept within the building envelope

3. Outside seating (within the envelop of the building) will be closed and chairs taken in
at 21:00. No persons will be permitted to consume alcohol there from that time. 

4. The volume and bass levels of any licensed entertainment shall be kept at a level
that is not audible outside the premises.

5. Openings in the buildings fabric (windows/doors/vents) will remain closed or be
appropriately boarded up or sealed during licensed entertainment, except for the
access or egress of patrons

6. Speakers will be kept low to the floor and be placed on rubber/anti-vibration matting
and will face into the premises

7. A course of soundproofing has been added to the floor for the flat directly above the
premise. An additional course of sound proofing will be added during the fit out to
reduce noise disturbance.  

8. A pop up of this concept has run in each of 34 and 36 Choumert Road on separate
occasions. A noise management policy was created to ensure neighbours and
residents were not impacted by noise that has proven effective. This policy to be
continued at the premises .

e) the protection of children from harm

1. Under 18s will not be permitted entry without adult supervision.

2. Children shall not be allowed at the bar servery area

Please upload a plan of the premises

Please upload any additional information i.e. risk assessments

Checklist

I have enclosed the plan of the premises.
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application<br> will
be rejected.
I understand that I must now advertise my application (In the local paper within 14 days
of applying

Home Office Declaration

Please tick to indicate agreement

I am a company or limited liability partnership

161



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

Declaration

I agree to the above statement

Yes

PaymentDescription

AuthCode

LicenceReference

PaymentContactEmail

Please provide name of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant's solicitor or other duly
authorised agent (please read guidance note 12). If completing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what
capacity.

Full name Sebastian O'Driscoll

Date 
(DD/MM/YYYY)

17/04/2019

Capacity Applicant

Where the premises licence is jointly held, enter the 2nd applicant (the current premises licence holder) or 2nd
applicant's solicitor or other authorised agent (guidance note 13). If completing on behalf of the applicant state
in what capacity

Full name

Date
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) an address for correspondence associated with this application
(please read guidance note 14)

Contact name and
address for
correspondence

Telephone No.

If you prefer us to
correspond with you
by e-mail, your email
address (optional)

The information you provide will be used fairly and lawfully and Southwark Council will not knowingly do
anything which may lead to a breach of the Data Protection Act 1998.

162



From: Sebastian O'Driscoll 

Sent: Monday, May 13, 2019 12:46 PM 
To: McArthur, Wesley 

Subject: 34-36 Choumert Road 

Hi Wesley, 

I am just emailing to let you know we would like to make the following 2 alternations to our 

licence application.  

1) Remove the Recorded Music application from the schedule as we only intend to play

background music. 

2) Remove the seasonal variation for films indoors on the application.

I was wondering if you could send me on the two representations made against the 

application so I can begin to deal with them. Also could we schedule in the licencing hearing 

so that, should the representations not be withdrawn, we can look to get a solution 

sooner rather than later. We are aiming to open full time from Saturday June 1st and are 

hopeful we will get a licence by then. 

Thanks 

Seb 

--  
Seb O'Driscoll 

Managing Director 

Six Yard Box  

Mobile: 

Web:    www.sixyardbox.london

Twitter: https://twitter.com/SixyardboxGB 

Facebook: www.facebook.com/sixyardboxlondon/ 

163



                                      APPENDIX B

The Licensing Unit Metropolitan Police Service 
Floor 3 Licensing Office 
160 Tooley Street Southwark Police Station, 
London 
SE1 2QH 

323 Borough High Street, 

LONDON, 

SE1 1JL 

Tel:     020 7232 6756  
Email: SouthwarkLicensing@met.police.uk        

Our 

reference: 

MD/21/069/19 

Date: 20/05/2019 

Dear Sir/Madam 

Re:- Six Yard Box 34-36 Choumert Road SE15 4SE 

Police are in possession of an application from the above for a new premises licence. 

The premises does sit within the Peckham CIP area, however there has been a pop up premises of 
the same concept operated there under a number of TENs. As far as we are aware these events have 
not been subject of any complaint. The hours applied for are within the framework hours as defined by 
Southwark’s Statement of licensing policy 2016-2020.  

This is a small venue with an approximate accommodation limit of 60 patrons and is therefore unlikely 
to have a negative impact on the licensing objectives. 

The applicant has offered a number of control measures as part of their operating schedule, however 
the wording could be considered as ambiguous and as such do not fully promote the licensing 
objectives. I object to this application in its current format. 

If the licensing subcommittee are minded to grant a premises licence then the following control 
measures are considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, in particular the 
prevention of crime and disorder.  

1. That a CCTV system be installed at the premises and be maintained in good working order
and be continually recording at all times the premises are in use under the licence. The CCTV 
System must be capable of capturing a clear facial image of every person who enters the 
premises 

2. All CCTV footage be kept for a period of 31 days and shall on request be made immediately
available to officers of the police and the council. 

3. A member of staff should be on duty at all times the premises is open that is trained in the use
of the CCTV and able to view and download images to a removable device on request of 
Police or council officer. 

164



4. That all staff are trained in their responsibilities under the licensing act 2003 and training
records to be kept and updated every 6 months and shall, upon request, be made 
immediately available to Officers of the Police and the Council. 

The Following is submitted for your consideration. 

Yours Sincerely 

PC Ian Clements  
Southwark Police Licensing Unit 
Tel:   0207 232 6756 

From: Sebastian O'Driscoll   
Sent: Tuesday, May 21, 2019 10:27 PM 
To: McArthur, Wesley; SouthwarkLicensing@met.police.uk 
Subject: Re: Application for a premises licence - Six Yard Box, 34 - 36 Choumert Road, Peckham, 
London, SE15 4SE (our ref: 867890) 

Hi Wesley, 

Please find enclosed amendments to our operating schedule as advised by the Police. 

1. That a CCTV system be installed at the premises and be maintained in good working order and be continually

recording at all times the premises are in use under the licence. The CCTV System must be capable of capturing 

a clear facial image of every person who enters the premises 

2. All CCTV footage be kept for a period of 31 days and shall on request be made immediately available to

officers of the police and the council. 

3. A member of staff should be on duty at all times the premises is open that is trained in the use of the CCTV

and able to view and download images to a removable device on request of Police or council officer. 

4. That all staff are trained in their responsibilities under the licensing act 2003 and training records to be kept

and updated every 6 months and shall, upon request, be made immediately available to Officers of the Police and 

the Council. 

We are more than happy to clear up the wording and are able to comply with these terms.  

Best Regards 

Seb 

From: McArthur, Wesley <Wesley.McArthur@southwark.gov.uk>  
Sent: 22 May 2019 10:27 
To: Clements Ian J - AS-CU <Ian.Clements@met.police.uk> 
Cc: 'Sebastian O'Driscoll'  MD Mailbox - Southwark Licensing 
<SouthwarkLicensing@met.police.uk> 
Subject: RE: Application for a premises licence - Six Yard Box, 34 - 36 Choumert Road, Peckham, 
London, SE15 4SE (our ref: 867890) 

Hi Ian, 

Please see the email from the applicant as below. Please return any further comments you have 
ASAP. 

Regards, 
Wesley McArthur  
Principal Enforcement Officer  
London Borough of Southwark  
E-mail: wesley.mcarthur@southwark.gov.uk 

165



General: licensing@southwark.gov.uk  
Phone: 020 7525 5779  
Fax: 020 7525 5705  
Address: Licensing, Health & Safety, Hub 1, 3rd Floor, 160 Tooley Street, SE1 2QH 

From: Ian.Clements@met.police.uk [mailto:Ian.Clements@met.police.uk]  
Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2019 12:24 PM 
To: McArthur, Wesley 
Cc:  
Subject: RE: Application for a premises licence - Six Yard Box, 34 - 36 Choumert Road, Peckham, 
London, SE15 4SE (our ref: 867890) 

Hi Wesley 

Thank you for the updates, I am now in a position to withdraw my representation 

Kind Regards 

Ian 

166



MEMO: Licensing Unit 

To Licensing Unit  Date  22 May 2019 

Copies 

From Jayne Tear Telephone 020 7525 0396 

Email  Jayne.tear@southwark.gov.uk 

 Subject Re: Six Yard Box Peckham, 34-36 Choumert Road, London, SE15 4SE 

 - Application for a premises licence. 

I write with regards to the above application for a premises licence submitted by Six 
Yard Box Limited under the licensing act 2003, which seeks the follows licensable 
activities: 

• Films (indoors) on Thursday and Friday from 19:00 to 22:00

• Recorded music (indoors) on Monday to Friday from 15:00 to 23:00; Saturday from 12:00
to 23:00 and on Sunday from 12:00 to 22:00

• Supply of alcohol (on and off the premises) on Monday to Thursday from 15:00 to 22:30;
Friday and Saturday from 12:00 to 23:00 and on Sunday from 12:00 to 22:00

• The proposed opening hours will be on Monday to Thursday from 15:00 to 23:00; Friday
and Saturday from 12:00 to 23:30 and on Sunday from 12:00 to 22:30

The premises is described as ‘The premises is made up of 2 self contained shops, 
divided by a plasterboard partition wall. Each side has a single exit door for egress 
onto Choumert Road. There is no rear exit or entrance to the building from either 
side of the premises. There is one flat above the premises, for which a course of 
soundproofing in the floor has been laid. There is a restaurant out of the neighbor 
in 38 and a food shop in 32’.  

My representation is submitted under the prevention of crime and disorder and the 
prevention of public nuisance licensing objectives and has regard to the Southwark 
Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 – 2020. 

The premises is situated in Peckham Major Town Centre and also falls within the 
Peckham CIP Area. Under the Southwark Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 - 
2020 the Local CIP applies to night clubs, public houses & bars, off-licenses, 
supermarkets, grocers, convenience stores and similar premises. 

Section six of the policy (from page 32) deals with Southwark’s local cumulative 
impact policies. This premises sits in the Peckham policy area as defined in 
paragraph 135 of the policy and, as bar this type premises, falls into the class of 
premises in 136 of the policy.  

167



  

Therefore under 119 of the policy there is a rebuttable presumption that 
applications for new premises licenses that are likely to add to the existing 
cumulative impact will normally be refused or subject to certain limitations. In such 
circumstances, it is for the applicant to demonstrate that the application will not, if 
granted, further contribute to the negative local cumulative impact on any one or 
more of the licensing objectives. 
 
The applicant has not addressed the presumption to refuse this application within 
the operating schedule. I would recommend refusal of this application unless the 
applicant can demonstrate that the premises will not contributing to crime and 
disorder and public nuisance within the policy area. 
 
Should the applicant provide further details within the operating schedule that 
members consider sufficient to prevent the operation of the premises contributing 
to crime and disorder and public nuisance within the policy area I would  be in a 
position to withdraw my representation. 
 
Therefore I also ask the applicant to consider:  
 
Due to the limited information in the application and to promote the licensing 
objectives I ask the applicant to provide the following information: 
 

• The accommodation limit for the premises (to be conditioned) 

• A written dispersal policy for the premises (to be conditioned) 
 
And consider adding the following conditions to the operating schedule: 
 

• All ‘off sales’ of alcohol shall be provided in sealed containers and taken away 
from the premises. 

• That clear legible signage shall be prominantely displayed where it can be 
easily seen and read, requesting that ‘off sales’ of alcohol are not be opened 
and consumed in the vicinity of the premises 

 
I therefore submit this representation and welcome any discussion with the applicant 
 
Southwark’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 – 2020 can be found on the following link: 
http://lbs-mapweb-01:9080/connect/Includes/APPIMA/SSOLP1620.pdf 
 
  
 
Jayne Tear 
Principal Licensing officer 
In the capacity of the Licensing Responsible Authority 

168



From: Sebastian O'Driscoll   

Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2019 6:05 PM 

To: Tear, Jayne; Regen, Licensing 

Cc: McArthur, Wesley 

Subject: Re: REPRESENTATION RE SIX YARD BOX PECKHAM 

Hi Jayne, 

Thanks for you email. 

Please note that I have amended the licence application and asked for Recorded music (indoors) on 
Monday to Friday from 15:00 to 23:00; Saturday from 12:00 to 23:00 and on Sunday from 12:00 to 
22:00 to be removed.  

Further to your representation we would like to add the following conditions to our operating schedule. 

• All ‘off sales’ of alcohol shall be provided in sealed containers and taken away from the
premises.

• That clear legible signage shall be prominently displayed where it can be easily seen and read,
requesting that ‘off sales’ of alcohol are not be opened and consumed in the vicinity of the
premises

Please find enclosed our written dispersal policy which we would like to to have as part of our operating 
schedule. I have thought I had included this in the application last month, my apologies.  

We would ask that an accommodation limit of 59 persons be added to the conditions of the licence. 
The premises is approx. 66m sq. with 2 entrances (one reserved for emergencies) so the ratio is under 
1 person per m2.  

If you require any more detail from me or would like anything clarified I would be happy to give you a 
call in the afternoon?  

Best Regards 

Seb O'Driscoll 

From: Tear, Jayne  
Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2019 4:31 PM 
To: 'Sebastian O'Driscoll' 
Cc: McArthur, Wesley 
Subject: RE: REPRESENTATION RE SIX YARD BOX PECKHAM 
Importance: High 

Dear Sebastian, 

With reference to the representation submitted by me as responsible authority for licensing.  

Thank you for confirming your accommodation limit and providing the attached dispersal policy for your 
premises. 

Can you confirm that you agree to the following conditions to be attached to the operating schedule: 

Conditions to be added to the operating schedule 

 The written dispersal policy shall be kept at the premises with the licence and made available for
inspection by authorised council officers or the police, all relevant staff shall be trained in the
implementation of the policy.

 The accommodation limit for the premises shall not exceed 59 persons (excluding staff)

 ‘Off sales’ of alcohol shall be sold in closed containers and taken away from the premises.

169



  

 That clear legible signage shall be prominantely displayed where it can be easily seen and read, 
requesting that alcohol sold as ‘off sales’ should not be opened and consumed in the vicinity of the 
premises 

 
If you can confirm that you are in agreement with all of the above I will be in a positon to withdraw my 
representation, 
 
With kind regards 
 
Jayne 

 
Jayne Tear - Principal Licensing Officer – As Responsible Authority for Licensing 
Southwark Council | Licensing Unit  
160 Tooley Street | London | SE1 2QH 

Direct line 020 7525 0396 | Fax 020 7525 5735 | Call Centre 020 7525 2000 

 
From: Sebastian O'Driscoll   
Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2019 5:03 PM 
To: Tear, Jayne 
Cc: McArthur, Wesley 
Subject: Re: REPRESENTATION RE SIX YARD BOX PECKHAM 

 

Hi Jayne, 
 
I can confirm that I am in agreement with all the enclosed conditions. 
 
Best Regards 
 
Seb O'Driscoll 

 
From: Tear, Jayne  
Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2019 5:41 PM 
To: 'Sebastian O'Driscoll' 
Cc: McArthur, Wesley 
Subject: RE: REPRESENTATION RE SIX YARD BOX PECKHAM 
Importance: High 

 
Dear  Sebastian, 
 
Thank you for your response below  I can now confirm that on that basis my representation is 
withdrawn, 
 
With kindest regards 
 
Jayne 
 
Jayne Tear - Principal Licensing Officer – As Responsible Authority for Licensing 
Southwark Council | Licensing Unit  
160 Tooley Street | London | SE1 2QH 

Direct line 020 7525 0396 | Fax 020 7525 5735 | Call Centre 020 7525 2000 
 

170



                   APPENDIX C

Objector 1 

From: 

Sent: Tuesday, April 30, 2019 6:04 PM 

To: Regen, Licensing 
Cc: Dale, Ken; Babudu, Peter 

Subject: Licence Application - Six Yard Box - Choumert Road 

Dear Wesley, 

I am writing to you to express my deep concerns ref the licence application for 34/36 

Choumert Road for a double fronted sports bar. As I am sure you are aware SIx Yard Box 

have already been operating under a temporary licence and have now expanding from a 

single unit to a double fronted bar. There are already a build up of issues ref Six Yard Box. 

For example, one evening recently I returned home via Choumert Road and (in addition to 

the sports bar customers) there were an a further 10-15 guys gathered outside the bar (I think 

customers from Lolak) to view the match through the glass frontage, thus adding to the noise 

levels. There is also the issue of noise travelling through the walls of abutting properties in 

Choumert Sq, as well as over the houses and into the Square itself. You may wish to visit the 

site to fully understand the impact of the back-to-back residential and commercial properties 

and to get a feel of how the noise also travels across the street into the houses opposite. It’s 

all very close quarters down here! 

Choumert Sq properties have already been regularly challenged by noise, litter, crime, 

drinking and drug dealing in Choumert Road. You are probably aware of the problems we 

had last summer and in 2017 when residents, the Police and Noise Management teams had to 

deal with illegal PA’s and sound systems and big break-out street parties with all the 

associated issues that activities of this nature bring. There is already a fairly lawless, free-for-

all feeling in this part of Choumert Road (which the Council is aware of) and the last thing 

that is needed here is a Sports Bar to add to these challenges, I therefore I hope that the 

application will not be granted. 

You know my broader concerns about Choumert Road becoming another version of 

Blenheim Grove. I am fearful that the drinking related problems in Blenheim Grove are in 

danger of being recreated one street over in Choumert Road. The problems in Blenheim 

Grove are extremely challenging for residents, the Police and the Council itself i.e. constant 

noise well into the early hours of the morning, littering, violent crime, drug dealing, fouling 

of streets with urine, vomit and even human excrement, etc. and the last thing we wants is to 

exacerbate and expand these problems. The Council's consultation on licence levies identifies 

that the Council and Police are already stretched in terms of managing these issues, so please 

take care when looking at long term planning for Choumert Road. 

Yours sincerely 

171



Dear Neighbour 

 

Thank you for engaging the licensing process and feeding back on our application. I do note your 

concerns and I hope that we are able to put enough measures in place that will both allay your 

concerns and also have a positive impact on Choumert Road.  

 

As a small business comprised of people local to the Peckham area we do care deeply about the 

neighbourhood and ensuring that our concept and business enhances the street and is positive for the 

community. Specifically to the points you raised please see below.  

 

1) Regarding the issue of the group that congregated outside and viewed the Champions League 

game through the window: we took note of this as well on the night and have taken a number of 

steps in designing the full-time premises to prevent this happening in the future. As such we will 

be install planters to the front of the premises (still within the envelop of the premises but 

externally) to create a barrier that will stop people looking in. These planters will be bound by a 

roped barrier that will only allow people to approach the single door that we will use for entrance 

and exit. We will also be placing lights and artwork in the windows to again obstruct any view of 

screens from the street. Finally we have added to our policy handbook that any staff on duty are to 

monitor the external area to ensure that the pathway outside is kept clear and anyone being anti-

social is asked to cease and move on. We have identified days that we expect to be busy and will 

have an SIA security guard that will monitor the shop and outside area on these days. We expect 

that this will prevent people being able to stand in the street and still watch our screen. 

 

2) Regarding the issue of noise travelling through the walls of the abutting properties, again this is 

something we were conscious of during the design of the full-time premises. As such we have 

divided the premises up so that the area for customers is kept to the front of the shop so that there 

is an added barrier between the residences and our trading area. We are using the area to the rear 

of the building for stock storage and two customer cubical toilets only. There will be no speakers 

or other amplified noise allowed in that area. Only two customers will be able to enter that area at 

any one time. The walls separating the front of house area to the back of house are 30cm thick 

concrete block. We will be install heavy fire doors which will have a noise cancelling effect on 

any noise generated in the front of house. We are also adding a course of soundproofing 

(replacing existing insolation with noise reducing insolation and replacing existing plaster boards 

with blue double plasterboards) to the ceiling and rear walls to further reduce noise. As such there 

will be a barrier of two enforced walls and a gap of 1.9m between the walls to cancel out noise 

generated in the shop floor area. We will have a strict policy on noise in the shop area and will 

only play music at background noise levels. All speakers will be mounted on rubber mats to 

reduce impact noise and stop any bass from travelling. These measure should prevent noise from 

travelling outside the premises and effecting our neighbours.  

 

3) Regarding your concerns around the wider issues experienced on the Choumert Road, this is 

something that we are aware of and we do know the street well. It is our intention to help bring 

about positive change on the street rather than add to any existing anti-social issues. Firstly, we 

will be making a number of cosmetic changes to the facade that will clean up the appearance of 

our building. Our design package includes the installation of external planters that will make the 

street more pleasant. We also intend to petition the council to remove the defunct and damaged 

signposts directly outside our premises as we intend to seek permission to add a row of Plant 

Lock planters in their place which will provide free bicycle as parking as well as improve the look 

of our neighbourhood.  

 

4) We will also look to engage other commercial neighbours and the council about improved waste 

disposal. We are of the opinion that the street is suffering from a ‘broken window effect’ in that as 

there is commercial waste dumped daily on the streets, which contributes to pedestrians feeling ok 

about littering or adding to the dumped waste.  We have engaged a number of the other businesses 

on the street already and they generally agree. It is our hope that we can work with our neighbours 

172



to come up with better way to process commercial waste and making the street a cleaner and nicer 

place.  

5) With regard to the issues you experienced in 2017, I would hope again that our presence would

have a preventative effect on incidents such as those. As a licenced premises, we have a

responsibility to act within the law and have a number of licensing objectives that we are bound to

up hold. As such our staff would act against the staging of any illegal parties, people drinking in

the streets, drug dealing, etc. We take our licencing responsibilities very seriously and will do all

we can to ensure that there is no anti-social behaviour on the street.

It is our hope to remain on the Choumert Road and become a valued part of the community. We are 

committed to bringing our vision of a place that gives our customers and the street more than just a 

bar. We sell vintage football shirts and posters/art, sell local match tickets, display artwork and 

operate a free weekly ‘kick about’ in Burgess Park. We are family friendly and hope to create an 

environment that welcoming to all. As such we intend to expand our coffee and hot drinks offering 

once we open full time and have more space. We initially engaged as a pop-up to learn more about 

how we can set up as a full time offering and ensure that when we set up full time we do so in a way 

that is sustainable and workable for us and our neighbours.  

I would welcome a face to face meeting if you think that would be helpful and really hope that you 

and the rest of our neighbours on Choumert Road and Choumert Square come to see us as a positive 

place that adds value to the area.  

Best Regards 

Seb O’Driscoll 

Managing Director of Six Yard Box Limited 

173



From:   

Sent: Friday, May 24, 2019 12:55 PM 
To: McArthur, Wesley 

Cc:  
 

Subject: Re: Application for a premises licence - Six Yard Box, 34 - 36 Choumert Road, Peckham, 

London, SE15 4SE (our ref: 867890) 

Dear Wesley, 

Please thank the applicants for there efforts to take onboard comments from local residents. 

However I remain an objector. 

I object in principle to any bar licences being issued in Choumert Road, as I am concerned 

that this will set a precedent and Choumert Road could become yet another bar strip, thus 

recreating the problems found in Blenheim Grove. 

Yours  

see comments below 

Choumert Sq properties have already been regularly challenged by noise, 

litter, crime, drinking and drug dealing in Choumert Road. You are probably 

aware of the problems we had last summer and in 2017 when residents, the 

Police and Noise Management teams had to deal with illegal PA’s and sound 

systems and big break-out street parties with all the associated issues that 

activities of this nature bring. There is already a fairly lawless, free-for-all 

feeling in this part of Choumert Road (which the Council is aware of) and the 

last thing that is needed here is a Sports Bar to add to these challenges, I 

therefore I hope that the application will not be granted. 

You know my broader concerns about Choumert Road becoming another 

version of Blenheim Grove. I am fearful that the drinking related problems in 

Blenheim Grove are in danger of being recreated one street over in Choumert 

Road. The problems in Blenheim Grove are extremely challenging for 

residents, the Police and the Council itself i.e. constant noise well into the 

early hours of the morning, littering, violent crime, drug dealing, fouling of 

streets with urine, vomit and even human excrement, etc. and the last thing we 

wants is to exacerbate and expand these problems. The Council's consultation 

on licence levies identifies that the Council and Police are already stretched in 

terms of managing these issues, so please take care when looking at long term 

planning for Choumert Road. 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

174



Objector 2 

From: 

Sent: Wednesday, May 01, 2019 9:16 AM 
To: Regen, Licensing 

Subject: Six Yard Box Peckham Ground Floor, 34-36 Choumert Road, London, SE15 4SE ~ APP 

867890 

1st May 2019 

Dear Sirs, 

I have had notification of a Premises Licensing  application for the above business which was 

recently installed as a temporary `pop-up' enterprise in Choumert Road. 

I wish to object to the request for extended seven-day-a-week Licensing Hours (with ability 

to show films and to play recorded music) for the following two key reasons: 

 the premises is very small, despite now expanded into a double-front from the first

single pop-up earlier this year - and the risk is inevitable that the activity will extend

out into Choumert Road itself (as has already been witnessed by a local resident)

 the licensing application proposed shouldn't go ahead for consideration until proper

sound insulation is installed to buffer sound transfer  and prevent disturbance to local

residents: both those living above 34-36 Choumert Road, those in adjoining Choumert

Road properties, and those of us in Choumert Square who are located close to or

directly behind Six Yard Box.

To expand: 

1. The location of the premises I know well.  It is close to the Thomas Calton Centre and

Lolak Restaurant.  In summer months, over the last run of years, there have been large

noisy crowds gathering around these locations into the night.  I know from attending

liaison meetings with the local Police that this stretch of Choumert Road, which is

embedded in an otherwise quiet residential area, has been a source of concern for

local residents because of crowd gathering, refuse in the streets from impromptu

partying, and nuisance noise.  To open yet another licensed premises with the ability

to sell alcohol on and off the premises is likely to be a factor that contributes to

increasing the noise and trouble rather than aiming to contain it. The screening of

football matches in itself is there to incite the excitement and the adrenalin rush of

those supporting a team/side.  Watching football matches encourages loud whoops of

joy or dismay.  And when done collectively, the sound can be deeply disturbing.   As

mentioned above, a neighbour reported back that crowds were recently gathered

outside the premises to watch the screen from the road rather than cram into the tiny

space that 34-36 actually affords its clients.  The noise carried.

2. I live directly behind the premises.  I would like to point out that noise insulation

doesn't seem to have been considered by the proprietors nor applied prior to either this

operation or licensing application.   The rear wall of my property in Choumert Square

(no. 40 and also no. 39 next door) is a wall that was formerly the shared rear wall of

34-36's back yard.  It is single brick depth.  When I moved to the Square in 1985 the

area behind my house was 34-36 Choumert Road's open backyard, and the rear wall

of their residence was some distance away from mine.   However over the years,

175



without any form of planning consultation, the yard has had a roof placed over it to 

provide a covered ground floor area at the premises' rear. Two velux windows were 

later installed in that roof.  So what was formerly a yard became first a store area, and, 

as I understand it, is now designed to provide  bathroom facilities.   But no sound 

insulation has been applied - and the noise of any movement or speech or music from 

the premises or directly in the rear of this former yard area comes directly through to 

my living room - and is so acoustically loud it's as if it were actually happening inside 

my own house.      I have witnessed this already with movement of what sound like 

barrels at the rear of 34-36.   And when the velux windows are opened (as they seem 

to be fairly permanently) the noise drifts straight up into my rear bedroom which is 

just a few feet from their opening.   Along my immediate stretch of neighbouring 

Choumert Square houses are families with very young children. 

3. I would be happy to reconsider my objection if the proprietors gave due regard first to

the proximity and composition of the wall dividing our properties, and insulated them

with appropriate material (breeze blocks) to lessen the noise impact.    If you check

records you will find that some years ago, when the rear was being used as an

assembly point for a group of men, that I had the Noise Team out to listen to the

sounds that directly came through as if a group of men were shouting at the end of my

living room.

4. Choumert Square provides us all with a tranquil haven - which is why we have chosen

to live there and make it not only a key part of Peckham's Heritage for future

generations  but have created there a garden site that's admired, celebrated and visited

by people from all over the UK and the world!   We can live side by side with

commercial activities - that's the spirit of inner city life;   but there MUST be control

about how their business operates.  And the building fabric of 34-36's  rear premises

will transmit sound out and up and down the immediate environment unless remedial

sound-proofing treatment is undertaken.

5. So I would like to ask, please, before this licensing application progresses that the

issue of noise through walls and out of veluxes into neighbours' bedroom windows is

first properly addressed.  And if it can be, in consultation with neighbours, then I'm

sure we will all wish Six Yard Box a happy home there.

6. Until then, my objection remains strongly in place.

Please acknowledge safe receipt of this objection. 

Thank you 

176



Dear Neighbour 

Thank you for engaging the licensing process and feeding back on our application. I do note your 

concerns and I hope that we are able to put enough measures in place that will both allay your 

concerns and also have a positive impact on Choumert Road.  

As a small business comprised of people local to the Peckham area we do care deeply about the 

neighbourhood and ensuring that our concept and business enhances the street and is positive for the 

community. Specifically to the points you raised please see below.  

1) Regarding the issue your neighbour witnessed of the group that congregated outside 36 Choumert

Road to view the Champions League game through the window: we took note of this as well on

the night and have taken a number of steps in designing the full-time premises to prevent this

happening in the future. As such we will be install planters to the front of the premises (still

within the envelop of the premises but externally) to create a barrier that will stop people looking

in. These planters will be bound by a roped barrier that will only allow people to approach the

single door that we will use for entrance and exit. We will also be placing lights and artwork in

the windows to again obstruct any view of screens from the street. Finally we have added to our

policy handbook that any staff on duty is to monitor the external to ensure that the pathway

outside the premises is kept clear and anyone being anti-social is asked to cease and move on. We

have identified days that we expect to be busy and will have an SIA security guard that will

monitor the shop and outside area on these days. We expect that this will prevent people being

able to stand in the street and still watch our screen. It is our intention that only patrons inside the

premises can watch matches and once we are at capacity we will not permit anyone else to enter

the premise or queue outside to get in.

2) We do understand the issues that you have identified regarding the back of house area that is

directly against the residences of Choumert Square. We will, as part of our fit out works, add

additional sound proofing to the ceiling and rear of our premises before opening and have

engaged two construction companies to carry this out. Prior to the pop-up we had very limited

scope as to the works that we could carry out on the building as we only had a short term licence.

However, as part of our tenancy we have agreed with the landlord a programme of works that will

add a course of soundproofing to the building. This will involve replacing existing insolation with

noise reducing insolation and replacing existing plaster boards with blue double plasterboard in

the ceiling. We will add a second wall to the rear (along with a cavity) which will be comprised of

concrete blocks which sound further reduce noise.

3) Regarding the movement of heavy barrels, whilst the sound proofing sound make a big impact on

this, we would like to engage with our neighbours to work out an optional time for deliveries so

that we are not moving these barrels at inconvenient times. We can write these designated times

into our operating policy and share with our suppliers.

4) We have divided the internal area of premises up so that the shop floor is kept to the front of the

shop and that there is an added partition barrier between the residences and our trading area as

well as the original external shop wall and the newer wall built against your rear wall. We will use

the area to the rear of the building for stock storage and two customer cubical toilets, however not

before adding a course of soundproofing to the ceiling and rear walls. There will be no speakers

or other amplified noise allowed in that area. Furthermore, only two customers will be able to

enter that area at any one time. The walls separating the front of house area to the back of house

are 30cm thick concrete block. We will install heavy fire doors which will have a noise cancelling

effect on any noise generated in the front of house. As such there will be a barrier of two enforced

walls and a gap of 1.9m between the walls to cancel out noise generated in the shop floor area.

Due to the impact of the skylight windows, we will seal them in order to stop noise escaping that

route. We do have a strict policy on noise in the shop area and will only play music at background

noise levels. All speakers will be mounted on rubber mats to reduce impact noise and stop any

177



bass from travelling. These measure should prevent noise from travelling outside the premises and 

effecting our neighbours.  

It is our hope to remain in the Choumert Road and become a part of the community. We are 

committed to bring our vision of a place that gives our customers and the area more than just a bar. 

We sell vintage football shirts and posters/art, sell local match tickets, display artwork and operate a 

free weekly ‘kick about’ in Burgess Park. We are family friendly and hope to create an environment 

that welcoming to everyone. As such we intend to expand our coffee and hot drinks offering once we 

open full time and have more space. We initially engaged as a pop-up to learn more about how we can 

set up as a full time offering and ensure that when we set up full time we do so in a way that is 

sustainable and workable for us and our neighbours.  

I would welcome a face to face meeting if you think that would be helpful and really hope that you 

and the rest of our neighbours on Choumert Road and Choumert Square come to see us as a positive 

place that adds value to the area.  

Best Regards 

Seb O’Driscoll 

Managing Director of Six Yard Box Limited 

178



From:   

Sent: Thursday, June 06, 2019 7:58 AM 

To: McArthur, Wesley 

Subject: Re: Application for a premises licence - Six Yard Box, 34 - 36 Choumert Road, Peckham, 

London, SE15 4SE (our ref: 867890) 

 

Dear Wesley, 
 

Further to my earlier acknowledgement of your email, I would first like to thank the applicant 
for their considered response to the issue of sound-proofing their property prior to operation 
and their willingness to meet with neighbours regarding optimal times for delivery etc. 

 
However, I remain concerned that the position of a premises with an ability to sell alcohol for 

consumption off site as well as on site will add to the growing difficulties experienced with 
crowds and noise in this stretch of Choumert Road.  My concern is that this facility will 
encourage this road's current evolution into a hub for street-crowding and partying at night - 

as evidenced earlier this week when the Noise Team had to be called out by Choumert Square 
neighbours and parents with young children had disturbed nights. 

 
And while, as I've said, I very much appreciate the careful reply to my reservations about 
noise transfer, last Saturday night intrusive sound travelled from Six Yard Box during the 

final match between Spurs and Liverpool:  men's voices were heard loudly and clearly by 
myself and friends from my living room, the sound having travelled through the rear wall and 

via the premises' backyard velux windows which were wide open. 
 
Unfortunately, my work commitments prevent me from being able to attend the hearing, but I 

would like to state that my objections as originally stated remain - but most particularly to the 
issue of being able to sell alcohol to be consumed offsite. 

 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 

 

179



St
ar

t 
d

at
e

 
En

d
 d

at
e

 
Ti

m
e

s 
M

ax
 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
p

eo
p

le
 

A
lc

o
h

o
l?

 
En

te
rt

ai
n

m
en

t?
 

La
te

 
re

fr
e

sh
m

e
n

t?
 

La
te

 
TE

N
? 

M
P

S 
o

b
je

ct
io

n
? 

EP
T

 
o

b
je

ct
io

n
? 

C
o

u
n

te
r 

n
o

ti
ce

? 

1
9/

02
/2

01
9

 
2

4/
02

/2
01

9
 

1
2:

00
 -

 
2

3:
00

 
3

5 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
N

o
 

N
o

 
N

o
 

N
o

 

2
6/

02
/2

01
9

 
0

3/
03

/2
01

9
 

1
2:

00
 -

 
2

2:
30

 
3

5 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
N

o
 

Ye
s 

N
o

 
N

o
 

0
5/

03
/2

01
9

 
1

0/
03

/2
01

9
 

1
2:

00
 -

 
2

3:
00

 
3

5 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
N

o
 

Ye
s 

N
o

 
N

o
 

1
3/

03
/2

01
9

 
1

6/
03

/2
01

9
 

1
2:

00
 -

 
2

3:
00

 
3

5 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
N

o
 

N
o

 
N

o
 

N
o

 
Ye

s 
– 

su
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

o
 

la
te

 

1
6/

03
/2

01
9

 
1

6/
03

/2
01

9
 

1
2:

00
 -

 
2

3:
00

 
3

4 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
N

o
 

N
o

 
N

o
 

N
o

 

APPENDIX D
180



©
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 d

at
ab

as
e 

rig
ht

s 
20

18
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

(0
)1

00
01

92
52

. L
an

d 
R

eg
is

tr
y 

In
de

x 
da

ta
 is

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 is

 r
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f L
an

d 
R

eg
is

tr
y.

APPENDIX E
181



Item No. 
7.

Classification:
Open

Date:
20 June 2019

Meeting Name:
Licensing Sub-Committee

Report title: Licensing Act 2003: Seehra Supermarket, 154 
Camberwell Road, London SE5 0EE

Ward(s) or groups affected: Camberwell Green

From: Director of Environment 

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the licensing sub-committee considers an application submitted by this council’s 
trading standards service under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) for the 
review of the premises licence held by Nisar Ahmadzai in respect of the premises known 
as Seehra Supermarket, 154 Camberwell Road, London SE5 0EE.

2. Notes:

a) The grounds for the review are stated in paragraph 12 to 16 of this report. A copy of 
the premises licence review application is attached as Appendix A.

b) The review application is supported by a representation submitted by licensing as a 
responsible authority. A copy of the representation is attached as Appendix B. 
Details of the representation are provided in paragraphs 17 to 20.

c) A copy of the current premises licence issued in respect of the premises is attached 
to this report as Appendix C. A map of the area that the premises are located in is 
attached as Appendix D.

d) A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the sub-committee in 
relation to an application made under the Licensing Act 2003, along with a copy of 
the hearing regulations, has been circulated to all parties to the meeting. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003

3. The Licensing Act 2003 provides a licensing regime for:

 The sale of and supply of alcohol
 The provision of regulated entertainment
 The provision of late night refreshment

4. Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.

5. The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with a view 
to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The promotion of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm

6.   In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to:

182
Agenda Item 7



 The Act itself
 The guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act
 Secondary regulations issued under the Act
 The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy
 The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the application
 Relevant representations

7. The applications process involves the provision of all relevant information required under 
the Act to the licensing authority with copies provided by the applicant to the relevant 
responsible bodies. The application must also be advertised at the premises and in the 
local press. The responsible authorities and other persons within the local community may 
make representations on any part of the application where relevant to the four licensing 
objectives.

8. The premises licence once issued remains valid for the life of the business unless 
surrendered or revoked. However, under section 51 of the Act it remains open to any 
responsible authority or other person to apply to the local licensing authority for a review 
of the premises licence where there are ongoing concerns regarding one or more of the 
four stated licensing objectives.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

The premises licence

9. The premises licence allows the provision of licensable activities as follows: 

 The sale of alcohol to be consumed off the premises:

o Monday to Saturday from 08:00 to 23:00
o Sunday from 10:00 to 22:30

 There are also no restrictions in respect of the premises’ standard opening times (it 
can therefore be open 24 hours a day).

10. The licence is subject to the mandatory conditions set down under the Act and further 
conditions consistent with the operating schedule submitted with the application for the 
licence. A copy of the full premises licence is attached as Appendix C.

Designated premises supervisor (DPS)

11. The current designated premises supervisor (DPS) named on the licence is Nisar 
Ahmadzai.  Nisar Ahmadzai is also the licensee of the premises.

The review application

12. On 26 April 2019, an application was submitted by this council’s trading standards team 
under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, for the review of the premises licence held by 
Nisar Ahmadzai in respect of the premises known as Seehra Supermarket, 154 
Camberwell Road, London SE5 0EE.

13. The review application was submitted in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder 
and in summary states that the following has been witnessed  and / or taken place at the 
premises:

Prevention of crime and disorder:

 Contravention of Section 144 of the Licensing Act 2003 – knowingly keeping on 
licensed premises smuggled goods (i.e. super strength beers and spirits).

183



 Offer and sale of duty evaded super strength beers and spirits – Customs and 
Excise Management Act.

 Contravention of Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 – contravention of a 
mandatory premises license condition that alcohol should not be sold below the 
minimum price – Karpackie 9% ABV lager on sale at £1.30 when the minimum price 
was £1.34.

 Failure to produce traceable invoices for all super strength beers purchased – 
General Food Hygiene Regulations 2013, Regulation 19.

 Contravention of Regulation 12 of the Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading 
Regulations 2008 – engaging in a commercial practice creating the impression that 
a product can be sold legally when it cannot.

 Contravention of Section 92 of the Trade Marks Act 1994 – use of a registered trade 
mark without the approval of the trade mark holder.

14. It is understood that whilst the premise has a 24/7 licence the current owner does not 
operate on a 24hour basis, though of course is currently able to do so if he so wishes. 

15. Trading standards are requesting the sub-committee consider all options available to it 
including revocation.

16. Full details of the grounds for the review are provided within the review application which 
is attached as Appendix A.

Representations from responsible authorities

17. There is one supporting representation submitted in support of the review application by 
licensing as a responsible authority. 

18. The licensing responsible authority representation is submitted in respect of the 
prevention of crime and disorder.  Licensing as a responsible authority state that they fully 
support the trading standards review application of this premises licence as the current 
licensed conditions do not fully promote the licensing objectives. Licensing as a 
responsible authority state that if the licensing sub-committee are not of a mind to revoke 
the premises licence, Licensing would recommend adding more robust conditions to 
promote the licensing objectives and a period of suspension whilst this is implemented.

19. Licensing as a responsible authority also state that they may submit further comments 
before the licensing sub-committee hearing in support of this representation.

20. A copy of the licensing responsible authority representation is attached as Appendix B.

Representations from other persons

21. No representations have been received by other persons.

Operating History

22. A premises licence was issued in respect of the premises on 17 November 2005, The 
licence was issued to Tirath Singh and Jaspal Kaur as joint premises licence holders and 
detailed Tirath Singh as the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS).

23. On the 1 July 2008 an application was made to transfer the premises licence into the 
name of Nisar Ahmadzai. No change was made to the DPS of the premises which 
remained in the name of Tirath Singh.

184



24. On the 30 October 2008 an application was received and granted to change the DPS of 
the premises into the name of Tirath Singh.

25. No TEN’s have been submitted in regards to the premises

26. There is no history of founded complaints regarding the premises.

27. On 26 April 2019, an application was submitted by this council’s trading standards service, 
for the review of the premises licence.  At the time of writing the premises licence holder 
has not submitted a response to the review application and representation, any 
submissions received prior to the hearing will be circulated

The local area

28. A map of the local area is attached as Appendix D. There is only one similarly licensed 
premises in the immediate vicinity, namely:

Iceland Foods Ltd, 120-132 Camberwell Road, London SE5 0EE: 

 Sale of alcohol off Premises:

o Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00
o Sunday: 10:00 to 22:30 

Canaan Restaurant, 163 Camberwell Road, London SE5 0HB

 Sale of alcohol on premises:

o Monday to Saturday: 11:00 to 00:00
o Sunday: 12:00 to 23:30 

 Late night refreshment indoors:

o Monday to Saturday: 23:00 to 00:30
o Sunday: 23:00 to 00:00.

Costcutter, 169 Camberwell Road, London SE5 0HB:

 Sale of alcohol off Premises:

o Monday to Sunday: 00:00 to 00:00

New Pak Hong, 177 Camberwell Road, London SE5 0HB:

 Late night Refreshment Indoors:

o Monday to Sunday: 23:00 to 01:00

La Casa Boliviana, 179 Camberwell Road, London SE5 0HB: 

 Sale of alcohol on Premises:

o Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 01:00
o Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 03:00

185



 Late Night Refreshment Indoors:

o Monday to Sunday to 23:00 to 05:00

 Late Night Refreshment Outdoors:

o Monday to Thursday: 23:00 to  02:00
o Friday to Saturday: 23:00 to 05:00
o Sunday: 23:00 to 00:00

Pasha Hotel, 158 Camberwell Road, London SE5 0EE:

 Late night Refreshment Indoors:

o Monday to Saturday: 23:00 to 00:30
o Sunday: 23:00 to 00:00 

 Sale of Alcohol on Premises: 

o Monday to Saturday: 11:00 to 00:00
o Sunday: 12:00 to 23:30

Zeret Kitchen, 216 Camberwell Road, London SE5 0ED:
 

 Late night Refreshment Indoors:

o Monday to Sunday: 23:00 to 00:00

 Sale of Alcohol on Premises:

o Monday to Sunday: 12:00 to 00:00

 Recorded Music Indoors:

o Monday to Sunday: 12:00 to 00:00.

Southwark council statement of licensing policy

29. Council assembly approved Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2016-20 on 25 
November 2015. Sections of the statement that are considered to be of particular 
relevance to the sub-committee’s consideration are:

 Section 3 - Purpose and Scope of the Policy. This reinforces the four licensing 
objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this Authority relies in 
determining licence applications.

 Section 5 – Determining Applications for Premises Licences and Club Premises 
certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers issues such as 
location; high standards of management; and the principles behind condition 
setting.

 Section 6 – Local Cumulative Impact Policies. This sets out this authority’s 
approach to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of the current special 
policy areas and the classifications of premises to which they apply. To be read in 
conjunction with Appendix B to the policy.

 Section 7 – Hours of Operation. This provides a guide to the hours of licensed 
operation that this Authority might consider appropriate by type of premises and 

186



(planning) area classification. To be read in conjunction with Appendix B to the 
policy.

 Section 8 – The Prevention of Crime and Disorder. This provides general guidance 
on the promotion of the first licensing objective.

 Section 9 – Public Safety. This provides general guidance on the promotion of the 
second licensing objective.

 Section 10 – The Prevention of Nuisance. This provides general guidance on the 
promotion of the third licensing objective.

 Section 11 – The Protection of Children from Harm. This provides general guidance 
on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective.

30. The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to applicants 
what considerations will be taken into account when determining applications and should 
act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the applications. However, the sub-
committee must always consider each application on its own merits and allow exceptions 
to the normal policy where these are justified by the circumstances of the application.

31. Within Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2016 - 2020, the premises are identified 
as being outside of a cumulative impact area and within a residential area. The closing 
time recommended in the Statement of licensing policy for off licences, and grocers or 
supermarkets with off sales of alcohol in this area is 23:00 daily.

Resource implications

32. There is no fee associated with this type of application. 

Consultations

33. Consultation has been carried out on this application in accordance with the provisions of 
the Licensing Act 2003.

Community impact statement

34. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits with all 
relevant matters taken into account.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

35. The sub-committee is asked to determine, under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, 
following an application, made under Section 51 of the same act, for a review of premises 
licence.  At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible authority or 
any other person may ask the licensing authority to review the licence because of a matter 
arising at the premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.

36.   The principles, which sub-committee members must apply, are set out below.

Principles for making the determination

37. Under Section 52 the licensing authority must hold a hearing to determine the review and 
any relevant representations.

187



38. The four licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The protection of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

39. Each objective must be considered to be of equal importance.  The authority must, having 
regard to the application and any relevant representations, take such of the following steps 
as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps are to:

 Modify the conditions of the licence by altering, omitting or adding any condition
 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence
 Remove the designated premises supervisor
 Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months
 Revoke the licence.

40. For the purpose of determining a relevant representation under section 52 of the Act a 
“relevant representation” means representations which:

 Are relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives
 Are made by the holder of the premises licence, a responsible authority or an    

other person within the prescribed period
 Have not been withdrawn
 If made by an other person (who is not also a responsible authority), that they    are 

not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing authority frivolous or vexatious.

41. Modifications of conditions and exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either 
permanently or for a temporary period of up to three months.

42. The authority may decide that no action is necessary if it finds that the review does not 
require it to take any steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.

43. In deciding what remedial action if any it should take, the authority must direct its mind to 
the causes or concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action should 
generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate 
and proportionate response.

44. It is of particular importance that any detrimental financial impact that may result from a 
licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the 
licensing objectives in the circumstances that gave rise to the application for review.

Reasons

45. Where the authority determines an application for review it must notify the determination 
and reasons why for making it to:

 The holder of the licence
 The applicant
 Any person who made relevant representations
 The chief officer of police for the area (or each police area) in which the premises 

are situated.

Hearing procedures

46. Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing committee may determine its 
own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that:

188



 The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority. Cross 
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is required 
for it to consider the representations

 Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other person 
appearing at the hearing

 The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in which to 
exercise their rights to:

o Address the authority
o If given permission by the committee, question any other party.
o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require 

clarification, give further information in support of their application.

 The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not 
relevant:

o To the particular application before the committee, and 
o The licensing objectives.

 The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the public from 
all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in doing so 
outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place 
in private

 In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may take 
into account documentary or other information produced by a party in support of 
their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either before the hearing 
or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing. 

47. This matter relates to the review of the premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003. Regulation 26(1) (a) requires the sub-committee to make its determination at the 
conclusion of the hearing.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

48. Sub-committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the council has 
multiple roles. Council officers from various departments have been asked to consider the 
application from the perspective of the council as authority responsible respectively for 
environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as the planning authority.

49. Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion solely 
to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-judicial capacity, 
and must act impartially. It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing of the application. In this 
case, members should disregard the council’s broader policy objectives and role as 
statutory authority in other contexts. Members must direct themselves to making a 
determination solely based upon the licensing law, guidance and the council’s statement 
of licensing policy.

50. As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the application 
on its merits. The sub-committee must take into account only relevant factors, and ignore 
irrelevant factors.  The decision must be based on evidence, that is to say material, which 
tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of relevant facts, or the likelihood or 
unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future event, the occurrence of which would be 
relevant. The licensing sub-committee must give fair consideration to the contentions of all 
persons entitled to make representations to them.

189



51. The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises if they 
are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open. The proprietors do 
not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same to be relevant.  
However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises being open, then the 
evidence is not relevant and should be excluded.  Guidance is that the licensing authority 
will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at the licensed 
premises on members of the public, living, working or engaged in normal activity in the 
area concerned.

52. Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to declare 
personal and prejudicial interests. The code applies to members when considering 
licensing applications. In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members are required to avoid 
both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

53. The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been raised 
through representations from other persons and responsible authorities.   

54. Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the sub committee needs to consider the balance 
between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the application 
when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under section 17 Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to prevent crime and disorder 
in the borough.

55. Other persons, responsible authorities and the applicant have the right to appeal the 
decision of the sub-committee to the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days 
beginning with the day on which the applicant was notified by the licensing authority of the 
decision to be appealed against.

Guidance

56. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office guidance in carrying out the 
functions of licensing authority.  However, guidance does not cover every possible 
situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully understood, members 
may depart from it if they have reason to do so.  Full reasons must be given if this is the 
case.

Strategic Director of Finance & Governance

57. The head of community safety and enforcement has confirmed that the costs of this 
process are borne by the service.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background papers Held At Contact
 Licensing Act 2003
 Home Office revised guidance
 Secondary Regulations
 Statement of Licensing Policy
 Various papers from the premises   
 file

 Licensing Unit
 Hub 1
 Third Floor
 160 Tooley Street
SE1 2TZ

Kirty Read
Phone number: 
020 7525 5748

190



APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix A Copy of the review application
Appendix B Copy of the premises licence
Appendix C Copy of the supporting representation from Licensing
Appendix D Map of local area

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Mick Lucas, Director of Environment
Report Author Richard Kalu, Principal Licensing Officer

Version Final
Dated 4 June 2018

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance  

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 6 June 2019

191



 [Insert details including name and address of licensing authority and application 
reference if any (optional)] 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  

I  Ray MOORE   (On behalf of Trading Standards) 

  (Insert name of applicant) 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 
Sehra Supermarket 
154 Camberwell Road 

Post town   London Post code (if known)  SE5 0EE 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known) 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known 
828582 

Part 2 - Applicant details 

I am  
Please tick yes 

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the
premises

APPENDIX A
192



193



194



4 

195



5 

The facts of the matter are as follows:- 

On Wednesday 20th March 2019 Ray MOORE from the Trading Standards Team and 

Justin WILLIAMS from the Licensing Team were out with Night Time economy Police 

doing visits to licensed premises. On the basis of information a test purchase of a 

can of Karpackie 9% ABV lager was made. This item cost £1.30 for a 500ml can. The 

minimum price for this item, (i.e. Duty + VAT) would be £1.34. So it was, in effect 

being sold 4p below the minimum price – which is simply the taxes on the product.  

As a result of this the two officers and police from the Night Time Economy Team 

went to the shop and announced themselves. Mr MOORE explained that he wished 

to examine the alcohol in the shop and that he intended to seize the Karpackie as he 

had reason to believe it had been smuggled into the country from Poland without 

payment of duty. The person Mr MOORE dealt with was the premises license holder 

and designated premises supervisor . Amongst the spirits were 

bottles of Alomo Bitters (40% ABV) and Powers Irish Whisky (40% ABV) which did 

not carry the required duty stamps. Once again these were clearly items that had 

been smuggled into the country without payment of duty. Further examination of the 

spirits revealed that there were a number of vodkas and whiskeys that had 

counterfeit rear labels including counterfeit rear labels. These included counterfeit 

duty stamps and counterfeit company trade marks. This is commonly found on 

products that have been produced in the UK for export and therefore free of UK duty. 

These products are then diverted back onto the UK market before reaching their port 

of departure. However, as these items have no UK duty marks they then remove the 

rear sticker and replace it with a counterfeit one. In total the following items were 

seized:- 

254 x 500ml cans of Karpackie lager 9% ABV 

21 x 750ml bottles of Alomo Bitters 40% ABV 

23 x 200ml bottles of Aomo Bitters 40% ABV 

30 x 200ml bottles of orijin Bitters 30% AQBV 

7 x 1000ml bottles of Smirnoff Vodka 37.5% ABV 

3 x 700ml bottles of Smirnoff Vodka 37.5% ABV 

5 x 1000ml bottles of Glenn’s Vodka 37.5% ABV 

8 x 700ml bottles of Glenn’s Vodka 37.5% ABV 

2 x 700ml bottles of High Commissioner Whisky 40% ABV 

3 x 700ml bottles of Powers Irish Whisky 40% ABV 

Mr MOORE formally requested invoices for the above products under food legislation 

196



6 

and gave a notice fro the items seized, No 2575 (exhibit 

RAY/Sehra/1). 

On Friday 29th March 2019  came in for a PACE interview about the 

alleged offences. However, he decided he wanted to have a solicitor with him so a 

second appointment was made for Friday 5th April 2019. In the end 

decided that he didn’t want a solicitor and he accepted that he had no invoices for the 

products and that he had made a mistake. He agreed to sign a simple caution 

relating to the alleged offences which he did on 5th April 2019. (exhibit RAY/sehra/3). 

The transcript of the interview is exhibit RAY/sehra/2. He also signed over the seized 

goods to London Borough of Southwark for destruction. 

The issue of the sale of high strength beers and ciders continues to be a problem in 

the London Borough of Southwark and has a major impact on public health and the 

well being of the local population. This is particularly acute when they are being sold 

below the minimum price. The issue of illegal alcohol in general continues to be a 

major issue across the borough and is not compatible with the licensing objectives. 

The sub-committee is invited to consider all options available to it including 

revocation.  

197



198



199



APPENDIX B
200



 

 
The Trading Standards officer has stated within the application:  
 
‘The issue of the sale of high strength beers and ciders continues to be a problem in the 
London Borough of Southwark and has a major impact on public health and the well being of 
the local population. This is particularly acute when they are being sold below the minimum 
price. The issue of illegal alcohol in general continues to be a major issue across the 
borough and is not compatible with the licensing objectives’ 
 
It is left open to the licensing sub-committee to  
 

• Revoke the licence 

• Suspend the licence for up to 3 months 

• Modify the conditions 

• Modify the hours/licensable activities 

• Or remove the designated premises supervisor 
 
I fully support the Trading Standards review application of this premises licence. The current 
licensed conditions do not fully promote the licensing objectives and if the LSC are not of a 
mind to revoke the premises licence, I would recommend adding more robust conditions to 
promote the licensing objectives and a period of suspension whilst this is implemented. 
 
I may submit further comments before the LSC Hearing in support of this representation.  
 
 
 
Jayne Tear 
Principal Licensing officer 
In the capacity of the Licensing Responsible Authority 

201



Page 1 of 6 

Premises licence number 828582 

Part 1 - Premises details 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

SEEHRA SUPERMARKET 
154 Camberwell Road 
London 

SE5 0EE 

Ordnance survey map reference (if applicable), 

177346532394 

Post town 
London 

Post code 
SE5 0EE 

Telephone number 
020 7277 4370 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 

The opening hours of the premises  
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence 

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 
Monday      08:00 - 23:00 
Tuesday     08:00 - 23:00 
Wednesday   08:00 - 23:00 

Thursday      08:00 - 23:00 
Friday       08:00 - 23:00 
Saturday       08:00 - 23:00 

Sunday       10:00 - 22:30 

Environmental Health & Trading Standards 
Licensing Unit 

Chaplin Centre 

Thurlow Street 
London SE17 2DG 

APPENDIX C
202



Page 2 of 6 

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence  

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  
Licence No. 

Authority 

Licence Issue date 30/10/2008 
…...………………………………. 

Environmental Health and 

Trading Standards Manager 
Chaplin Centre 
Thurlow Street 

London SE17 2DG 
020 7525 5748 

licensing@southwark.gov.uk

203



Page 3 of 6 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -

a.At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect

of the Premises Licence; or 

b.At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a

Personal   Licence or h is Personal Licence is suspended. 

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or

authorised by, a person who holds a Personal Licence. 

204



Page 4 of 6 

 Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 

124 Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during the permitted

hours. In this condition the permitted hours means: 

a.On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 8.00.a.m. to 11.00.p.m.

b.On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10.00.a.m. to 10.30.p.m.

c.On  Christmas day, 12 noon to 3.00.p.m. and 7.00.p.m. to 10.30.p.m.

d.On Good Friday, 8.00.a.m. to 10.30.p.m.

The above restrictions do not prohibit: 

i)During the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of 

the alcohol from the premises, unl ess the alcohol is supplied or 

taken in an open vessel 

ii)The ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the 

dispatch by the vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 

iii)The sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the 

trade or club ; 

iv)The sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a 

canteen in which the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under 

the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised mess of 

members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air forces .  

125 Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or be consumed in the

licensed premises. 

127 Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied unless it is paid for before or

at the time when it is sold or supplied, except alcohol sold or supplied:  

a.With and for consumption at a meal supplied at the same time,

consumed with the meal and paid for together w ith the meal;  

b.For consumption by a person residing in the premises or his guest

and paid for together with his accommodation; 

c.To a canteen or mess.

288 That the CCTV system installed upon the premises shall be maintained

in good working condition and operable at all times 

289 That recordings taken by the CCTV system installed upon the premises

shall be kept and made available for inspection by authorised officers  

for a period of twenty-eight days 

205



Page 5 of 6 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

206



Page 6 of 6 

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached

Licence No. 828582 

Plan No. SE/SHOP - 05 

Plan Date 30 July 2005 

207



©
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 d

at
ab

as
e 

rig
ht

s 
20

18
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

(0
)1

00
01

92
52

. L
an

d 
R

eg
is

tr
y 

In
de

x 
da

ta
 is

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 is

 r
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f L
an

d 
R

eg
is

tr
y.

APPENDIX D
208



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018-19

NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to 
Andrew Weir - Tel: 020 7525 7222

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

Members

Councillor Renata Hamvas (Chair)
Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall
Councillor Ian Wingfield

Councillor Sunny Lambe (Reserve)

1
1
1

By email

Officers

Debra Allday, legal team
Joanne Shilton, legal team
Wesley McArthur, licensing team
Ricahrd Kalu, licensing team
Dorcas MIlls, licensing team
Jayne Tear, licensing team
Raye Moore, trading standards team

Andrew Weir (spares)                          

Total printed copies: 20             

Dated: 11 June 2019

1
1
1
1
1
1

10


	Agenda
	5 Licensing Act 2003: Electric Shuffle,  Unit LES - 02  London Bridge Station, (10 Bermondsey Street)  London SE1 2ER
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E

	6 Licensing Act 2003: Six Yard Box Peckham, 34 - 36 Choumert Road, Peckham, London SE15 4SE
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E

	7 Licensing Act 2003: Seehra Supermarket, 154 Camberwell Road, London SE5 0EE
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D

	 



